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1. GENERAL INFORMATION FOR MISA \\,
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SUPPORT AGENT
REGISTRATION NUMBER: N/A
PHYSICAL ADDRESS: 1303 HEUWEL AVENUE
LETABA HOUSE
CENTURION
0157
POSTAL ADDRESS: PRIVATE BAG X105
CENTURICN
0046
TELEPHONE NUMBER: +27 12 848 5300
EMAIL ADDRESS: communications@misa.gov.za
WEBSITE ADDRESS: WWw.misa.gov.za
EXTERNAL AUDITORS: AUDITOR-GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA,
BANKERS: STANDARD BANK

COMPANY/ BOARD SECRETARY N/A
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS \,

AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa

AoPO Audit of Predetermined Objectives

B2B Back to Basics

B-BBEE Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment
APP Annual Performance Plan

ARPL Artisans Recognition for Prior Learning

B2B Back to Basics

CAE Chief Audit Executive

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CoGTA Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
DBSA Development Bank of Southern Africa

DCOG Department of Cooperative Governance

DDG Deputy Director General

DDM District Development Model

DM District Municipalities

DORA Division of Revenue Act

DoT Department of Transport

DPME Department of Planning, Manitoring and Evaluation
DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration
DWsS Department of Water and Sanitation

FFC Financial and Fiscal Commission

FMPPI Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information
GDP Gross Domestic Product

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

HR Human Resources

HRD Human Resources Development
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Infrastructure Assessment and MEM

Information Communication Technology

International Auditing Standards

Infrastructure Delivery Management System
Infrastructure Delivery Management Support Programme

Infrastructure Delivery, Maintenance and Stakeholder Coordination
subprogramme

Inter-Ministerial Task Team an Service Delivery
Integrated Development Plans
Information Technology

Kwazulu-Natal

Local Government Sector Training Education and Training Authority
Local Government Turnaround Strategy
Land Use Management Schemes
Monitoring and Evaluation

Municipal Capacity Development Plans
Municipal Infrastructure Grant
Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent
Memaorandum of Agreement
Memorandum of Understanding
Medium Term Expenditure Framework
Medium Term Strategic Framework
National Development Plan

National Treasury

Occupational Health and Safety
Occupational Specific Dispensation
Post Action Audit Plan

Presidential Economic Stimulus

Public Finance Management Act
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PMDS Performance Management DavaluM

PMU Project Management Unit

PSA Public Service Act

PSP Professional Service Providers

QAIP Quality Assurance Improvement Programme
RMSC Regional Management Support Contracts
SANRAL South African National Road Agency Limited
SDF Spatial Development Framework

SCM Supply Chain Management

SMs Senior Management Services

SO Strategic Objectives

SONA State of the National Address

SPLUMA Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act
TSP Technical Support Plan

TVET Technical Vocational Education and Training
WSP Waorkplace Skills Plan
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3. FOREWORD BY THE MINISTER

The Corona Virus infections that spread across the entire globe
following its outbreak in China in late 2019 continued to ravage
our shores during the 2021/22 financial year. As more people
got infected with the virus and the number of deaths continued
to rise, the impact on families across the entire country left the
nation in dire straits, The negative impact of the pandemic on
the economy decimated the revenue base of municipalities due
to high rate of job losses and declining intergovernmental fiscal
transfers from the depleted national revenues. Conseguently,

: municipalities struggled to meel the needs for basic services
within their respective areas of jurisdictions . Poor economic performance resulted in the
reduced capital investments and operational budgets for the provision of infrastructure

critical for basic service delivery.

As part of the Presidential Employment Stimulus (PES ) package aimed at boosting
economic activities during the COVID -19 pandemic , the Municipal Infrastructure Support
Agent (MISA ) contributed to the creation of jobs at local government level through the
mainstreaming of labour -intensive construction (LIC ) methods in the implementation of
municipal infrastructure funded from conditional grants allocations . An amount of R50
million had been allocated for this programme from the previous year budget. The LIC
programme was championed in various municipalities across the country during the financial
year under review.

Another programme implemented by MISA as part of the PES package is the innovative
waste management programme that was rolled out in various municipalities . A dedicated
funding of R284 million was allocated to MISA from the PES package.The main focus of
this pilot programme is to support 25 municipalities in the implementation of innovative
solid waste management solutions with a two-pronged objective of creating work
opportunities and training for participants and the development of small enterprises drawn
from local communities.

MISA was assigned the task of spearheading the Eastern Seaboard project aimed at
establishing a smart coastal city in the vast area straddling various districts in both Eastern
Cape and Kwazulu-Natal Provinces. This project emanated from the smart city programme
announce by the Honourable President, Cyril Ramaphosa, in his State of the Nation Address
(SONA) in 2020. Significant strides were made in so far as consultations with a myriad of
stakeholders in areas affected by this project during the year under review. These
consultations have culminated in overwhelming buy-in by various role players and those to
be affected by the developments aligned with the smart city project. Numerous role players
from all spheres of government, state owned entities and the private sector have coalesced
around the project through different collaborative structures.

As the designated Executive Authority of MISA and in terms of relevant provisions of the Public
Service Act of 1994, | initiated the process of establishing an Advisory Board for MISA. The
process of appointing members with requisite skills to serve in the inaugural Board was at an
advanced stage as at the end of the financial year under review. | am confident that once in
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operation the advisory board will immensely enhances the ability-of S
mandate of supporting municipalities to optimally deliver Infrastructure far basic services fm'
the benefit of their communities.

In the year ahead, MISA will intensify its efforts to accelerate the implementation of the Eastern
Seaboard project drawing resources and expertise from various sectors of society, Another
critical task facing the Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs Portfolio (CoGTA) is
the intervention programme in 64 most vulnerable municipalities in the country. These
municipalities were identified during the assessment conducted as part of the District
Development Model (DDM) during the year under review. MISA is at the forefront of efforts to
address challenges relating to municipal infrastructure and service backlogs in these priority
municipalities.

| am deeply grateful to the Chief Executive Officer, the entire management team and all staff
in MISA for their tremendous efforts towards enhancing the delivery of municipal infrastructure
and services for the benefit of the citizens. | am also thankful to the Deputy Ministers for their
unwavering support and invaluable contributions to the process of addressing challenges
facing the local government sphere.

-
N’{.J i

DR NKOSAZANA DLAMINI ZUMA, MP
MINISTER
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4. DEPUTY MINISTER STATEMENT P, g

Since the publication of the White Paper on Local Government
in 2000, the South African municipalities space has undergone
tremendous transformation. Through successive local
government elections, municipalities were able to institute
Councils to lead their programme aimed at meeting the needs of
communities. While our system of democratic and
developmental local government has evidently brought about
material changes to the lives of the people, unsatisfactory
performance by some municipalities remain a justifiable cause
for concern. During the year under review, CoGTA conducted
an assessment under the auspices of the DDM with a view to
ascertaining the status quo in local government.

This assessment revealed that 64 municipalities were in dire straits with some of these on the
brink of total collapse . Numerous factors were identified as impacting on the ability of these
municipalities to fulfil their Constitutional mandate. In light of these findings, the department of
Cooperative Governance (DCOG ) developed a comprehensive intervention plan aimed at
assisting the 64 most vulnerable municipalities to improve their functionality and enhance their
capacity to meet the needs of communities they serve. The implementation of this intervention
will unfold in earnest during the 2022/23 financial year.

Recent floods that occurred in Kwazulu-Natal (KZN) province, especially in areas under the
eThekwini Metropolitan Municipality, served to confirm the inescapable reality of climate
change. Although the province had experience similar disasters in the past, the extent of
damage and loss of lives due to recent floods were unprecedented. As we continue to rebuild
the damaged infrastructure and homes for the people of KZN affected by these floods, it is
crucial that we start to enhance the resilience of such infrastructure to minimise the impact of
any future disasters of similar nature . These imperatives requires that government spheres
collaborate around improved spatial planning and infrastructure designs . The Municipal
Infrastructure Support Agent (MISA) is geared to play a pivotal role in the implementation of the
intervention plan focusing mainly of enabling municipalities to effectively deal with
infrastructure delivery challenges.

It has been my pleasure to have an opportunity to contribute to the transformation of the
municipal planning and infrastructure development landscape working with a dedicated team
of managers in MISA. My work was made much easier because of unwavering support from
the Chief Executive Officer, Directors-General and Deputy Minister Obed Bapela. | am also
grateful to Minister Dlamini Zuma whose passion and drive towards the turnaround of
distressed municipalities has invigorated our efforts to realise the vision of a developmental
local government.

v

THEMBI NKADIMENG
DEPUTY MINISTER FOR COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE

. 11 -
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5.  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S OVERVIEW e

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Municipal Infrastructure
Support Agent (MISA) received total revenue amounting fo
approximately R638 million. This amount comprises R629 million
transferred to the entity from the National Revenue Fund through
the CoGTA Vote (Vote 3) inclusive also of funding received from
LGSETA and R8.7 million from earned interest. The fiscal transfer
amount includes an allocation of R284 million earmarked for the
rollout of the innovative solid waste management programme .
MISA has been assigned to implement this programme as part of
the Presidential Economic Stimulus programme aimed at boosting
job creation in view of the severe impact on the country’s economy
of the lockdown induced by the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The late transfer of these funds caused delays in the start of the programme that in turn has a
negative impact on spending against the allocated budget. Total expenditure for the year
under review was about R445 million which amounts to 70% of the total revenue for the year
of R638 million . As percentage of the total annual budget, spending for the year under
review reflects an improvement from the previous year expenditure of 67%.

An amount of R179 million was spent of employee related costs, which represents 40% of the
total expenditure for the year under review. Spending on contracted services amounted to R
220 million which constitutes 50% of the total expenditure . The remaining 10% of the total
spending for the year relates to general expenses amounting to R41 million and depreciation
and amortisement of R5 million. In the year under review MISA achieved targets for 30 of the
33 output indicators in the approved annual performance plan (APP) for the year.

The three performance targets not achieved are under the Technical Support Services (TSS)
Programme . These three targets relate to the training of experiential learners , training of
young graduates and the training of municipal officials through the recognition of prior learning
(RPL ) programme . The reason for not achieving performance targets for the first two
indicators was delayed completion of the process of recruitment learmers into the
programme due to systematic challenges experienced by the South African Qualification
Authority upon which MISA relies for verification of candidates ' qualifications . The
achievement of performance target on the training of municipal officials was hampered by
investigation on the procurement process towards appointing two public TVET colleges that
delayed the enrolment of 80 officials in the programme . As measures to avoid the repeated
under achievement in respect to performance targets linked to training of learners and
municipal officials, MISA will strive to commence with the recruitment process far much earlier
in the coming financial year to mitigate the impact of delays in response handling and
verification of applicants. Additionally, management is exploring the option of devolving certain
activities involved in the learning programmes to municipalities.

MNone of the output indicators in the approved annual performance plan (APP) was discontinue d
during the year under reviewed . During the third quarter of the year two indicators under the
Infrastructure Delivery Management Support (IDMS ) were revised to reflect the shift from
targeting the districts to focusing on individual municipalities in an endeavour to align the
approach with National Treasury as leading partners.

-:-'".'.'.:. 12 :-":'-'::



IEESS——— |

Munictpal Infrastruciura Suppont Agent
Annusl Report 20212002

\\ — . — —
These two indicators relates to support to municipalities on the lmpTemﬁ Afrastructure
Delivery Management System and enhancement of infrastructure pmcurarnent practlcas One
new output indicator was included in the APP during the same quarter . This indicator |, also
under the IDMS programme, is on support to municipalities o pilot innovative technologies and
methods for solid waste management solutions. MISA was assigned to drive the roll out of this

pilot programme targeting 25 municipalities utilizing a dedicated funding of R284 million
allocated as part of the Presidential Stimulus Package (PES).

MISA management has applied for the rollovers of unspent funds from the previous financial
year allocation amounting to R117 million. National Treasury did not approve this application
forcing the entity to surrender such funds to the fiscus. Over the past five years MISA has
succeeded in improving the internal control mechanisms within its supply chain management
function. These improvements enabled the entity to prevent the incurrence of irregular
expenditure over the past three financial years. Capacity within the SCM unit was
strengthened by bringing in additional human resources through a co-sourcing arrangement.
MNotwithstanding this measure to enhance SCM capacity, the entity experienced delays the
process of evaluating bids during the year under review. These delays were caused by high
number of bids cancellation for one reason or another and unavailability of bid committee
members. In the year under review the entity did not conclude any unsolicited bid proposal.

The Auditor-General (AG) did not raise any material findings in its audit report following the
conclusion of 2021/22 audit. Accordingly , it issued an unqualified audil opinion without
material findings (clean audit) for MISA in respect to that financial year. This followed the
achievement of the same audit outcomes in the past three financial years. It is projected that
MISA will continue to remain solvenl for the foreseeable future on that assumption that
National Treasury through DCoG will continue to allocate funds for the ongoing operations of

the entity. Following the occurrence of devastating floods in Kwazulu-Matal (KZN) province
in April this year, MISA deployed a multi-disciplinary team of engineers to participate in the
assessment of damages . This team has since completed its assessments including the
costing and prioritisation of projects to rebuild damaged infrastructure in various districts
withing the province.

Achievements highlighted in this report are duly attributable to the commitment and efforts of
the management team and all other staff members within MISA. | am grateful for the
contribution made by my colleagues and their appreciation of the tough task of taking the
organisation to even higher performance levels in the future. It is also my pleasure to
acknowledge astute leadership and support provided by the Minister, Deputy Ministers and
the Director-General of DCoG without which it would have been extremely difficult to reach
our milestones for the year.

Gk

NTANDAZO G VIMBA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE SUPPORT AGENT

DATE:
23/05/22

e 13 -
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6. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION-OF AGCUR R
THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report are consistent with the annual
financial statements audited by the Auditor General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report
as issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) standards applicable to the public entity.

The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements
and for the judgements made in this information.

The accounting officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal
control has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial
statements.

The external audilors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information,
the human resources information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial
year ended 31 March 2022.

Yours faithfully
Signed by Goodman Nandazo Vimba
Signed at 2022-05-24 15:33:23 +02:00
Reason Witnessing Goodman Nlandazo

Wirh

NTANDAZO G VIMBA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE SUPPORT AGENT

DATE: 23/05/22
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7. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW \\-’

7.1 Vision
Leaders in Municipal Infrastructure Support.
7.2 Mission

Our mission is to provide integrated municipal infrastructure support services to municipalities
through technical expertise and skills development towards the efficient infrastructure delivery
systems, processes and procedures.

7.3 Values

Guided by the spirit of Batho Pele, our values are:

= Integrity

« Collaborative

= Knowledgeable

* Professionalism

= Service Excellence

8. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
8.1 MISA's Mandate

MISA has been mandated to render technical advice and support to municipalities so that they
optimise municipal infrastructure provisioning. MISA is expected to execute this mandate by
performing the following functions:

s Supporting municipalities to conduct effective infrastructure planning to achieve
sustainable service delivery;

= Supporting and assisting municipalities with the implementation of infrastructure
projects as determined by the municipal integrated development plans (IDPs);

=« Supporting and assisting municipalities with the operation and maintenance of
municipal infrastructure;

s Building the capacity of municipalities to undertake effective planning, delivery,
operations and management of municipal infrastructure; and

= Performing any function that may be deemed ancillary to those listed above.

8.2 Constitutional Mandate
CoGTA’s mandate is primarily derived from Chapters 3, 5, 6, 7, and 9 of the Constitution of

the Republic of South Africa, 1996, hereafter referred to as the Constitution. The main thrust
for each of these chapters is presented below.




IEESS——— |

Munictpal Infrastruciura Suppont Agent
Annusl Report 20212002

N R
Chapter 3 - This chapter deals with cooperative government and \tal relatic -

The Department will have to ensure that we observe and adhere iu the pnnmples in this
chapter and that we conduct our activities within the parameters of this chapter,

Chapter 5§ - This chapter deals with national intervention in provincial administration when a
province cannot or does not fulfil an executive obligation in terms of the Constitution or
legislation.

Chapter 6 - This chapter deals with provincial intervention in local government, in particular
when municipalities are unable to fulfil their executive obligation. Chapter 6 is also relevant
when a municipality, as a result of financial crisis, breaches its obligations to provide basic
services in order to meet its financial obligations.

Chapter 7- The chapter deals, inter alia, with municipalities in cooperative governance. The

Department, by legisiation, must support and strengthen the capacity of municipalities to
manage their own affairs, exercise their powers and perform their functions.

Chapter 9 - This chapter deals with those institutions whose role requires strengthening the
constitutional democracy of the country. DCoG must comply with all legislative frameworks in
this chapter in order to meel legislative requirements under the auspices of institutions such
as the Auditor-General and Public Protector.

DCoG's primary mandate is to:

+ Develop and monitor the implementation of national policy and legislation seeking to
transform and strengthen key institutions and mechanisms of governance to fulfil their
developmental role.

« Develop, promote and monitor mechanisms, systems and structures to enable integrated
service delivery and implementation within government.

+ Promote sustainable development by providing support to and exercising oversight over
provincial and local government.

83 Legislative Mandate

As a national department, DCOG's function is to develop national policies and legislation with
regard to local government and to monitor, inter alia, the implementation of the following
pieces of legislation:

Name of Legislation | Mandate

Municipal Property | To regulate the power of a municipality to impose rates on property; to
Rates Act, 2004 (Act | exclude certain properties from rating in the national interest; to make
No.6 of 2004) provision for municipalities to implement a transparent and fair system
of exemptions, reductions and rebates through their rating policies; to
make provision for fair and equitable valuation methods of properties;
and to make provision for an objections and appeals process
therawith.

> 16 -
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Name of Legislation Mandate

Local Government: To secure sound and sustainable management of the financial affairs
Municipal Finance  of municipaliies and other institutions in the local sphere of

Management Act,
2003 (Act No 56 of
2003)

government; to establish treasury norms and standards for the local
sphere of government; and to provide for matters connected therewith,

Disaster
Management  Act,
2002 (Act No. 57 of
2002)

To provide for:

+ Anintegrated and coordinated disaster management policy, which
focuses on preventing or reducing the risk of disasters, mitigating
the severity of disasters, emergency preparedness, rapid and
effective response to disasters and post-disaster recovery.

+ The establishment of national, provincial and municipal disaster
management centres.

Disaster management volunteers.
Matters incidental thereto.

Local Government:
Municipal Systems
Act, 2000 (Act No.
32 of 2000)

To provide for the core principles, mechanisms and processes that are
necessary to enable municipalities to move progressively towards the
social and economic upliftment of local communities; to ensure
universal access to essential services that are affordable to all; to
define the legal nature of a municipality as including the local
community within the municipal area, working in partnership with the
municipality's political and administrative structures; to provide for the
manner in which municipal powers and functions are exercised and
performed:; to provide for community participation; to establish a simple
and enabling framework for the core processes of planning,
performance management, resource mobilisation and organisational
change, which underpin the notion of developmental local government;
to provide a framework for local public administration and human
resource development; to empower the poor and ensure that
municipalities establish service tariffs and credit control policies that
take their needs into account, by providing a framework for the
provision of services, service delivery agreements and municipal
service districts; to provide for credit control and debt collection; to
establish a framework for support, monitoring and standard setting by
other spheres of government in order to progressively build local
government into an efficient, frontline development agency capable of
integrating the activities of all spheres of government for the overall
social and economic upliftment of communities in harmony with their
local natural environment.

Local Government:
Municipal

Structures Act, 1998
(Act No. 117 of1998)

To provide for the establishment of municipalities, in accordance with
the requirements relating to categories and types of municipality; to
establish criteria for determining the category of municipality to be
established in an area; to define the types of municipality that may be

——

.- 17

——
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Name of Legislation

o e

. -

Mandate

established within each category; to provide for an appropriate
decision of functions and powers between categories of municipality;
to regulate the internal systems, structures and office-bearers of
municipalities; to provide for appropriate electoral systems; and to
provide for matters in connection therewith.

The
Intergovernmental
Relations
Framework Act{Act
No. 13, of 2005)

The objective of this Act is to facilitate coordination by the three
spheres of government in the implementation of policy and legislation.
It is a Framework Act, which allows for flexibility between the spheres
in meeting the challenges within the conduct and practice of
cooperative government. It also provides for the basic architecture of
intergovernmental structures and for processes to guide the settlement
of intergovernmental disputes.

Local Government:
Municipal
Demarcation

Act, 1998 (Act No.
27 of 1998)

Organised Local
Government Act, 52
of 1997

To provide for criteria and procedures for the determination of
municipal boundaries by an independent authority; and to provide for
matters connected thereto.

To provide for the recognition of national and provincial organisations
representing the different categories of municipalities; to determine
procedures by which local government may designate representatives
to participate in the National Council of Provinces; to determine
procedures by which local government may consult with national and
provincial government; to determine procedures by which local
government may nominate persons to the Financial and Fiscal
Commission, and to provide for matters connected therewith.

Fire Brigade
Services Act, 99 of
1987

Remuneration of
Public Bearers Act,
20 of 1998

To provide for the establishment, maintenance, employment,
coordination and standardisation of Fire Brigade Services; and for
matters connected therewith.

To provide for a framework determining the salaries and allowances of
the President, members of the National Assembly, permanent
delegates to the National Council of Provinces, Deputy President,
ministers, deputy ministers, traditional leaders, members of provincial
Houses of Traditional Leaders and members of the Council of
Traditional Leaders; to provide for a framework determining the upper
limit of salaries and allowances of Premiers, members of Executive
Councils, members of provincial legislatures and members of
Municipal Councils; to provide for a framework determining pension

e i
. ."-.'-3'
-Eq._% 1 H #_.,.5.-
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Name of Legislation Mandate

and medical aid benefits of office bearers; to provide for the repeal of
certain laws; and to provide for matters connected therewith.

Local Government: | To give effect to section 155(64) of the Constitution by authorising the

Cross-Boundary provincial executives affected to establish cross-boundary
Municipal Act, 29 of | municipalities; to provide for the re-determination of the boundaries of
2000 such municipalities under certain circumstances, and to provide for

matters connected therewith.

84 Policy Mandate

The National Development Plan (NDP) — Vision 2030

The National Development Plan (NDP) recognises the need for South Africa to invest in the
expansion of its infrastructure network essential for the achievement of the country's socio-
economic cbjectives. This goal of expanding infrastructure throughout the country can only be
achieved through the development of robust infrastructure and ensuring that once developed;
the infrastructure assets are properly maintained.

MNotwithstanding the pivotal role designated for local government in the ongoing roll-out and
maintenance of infrastructure for the provision of basic services such as water, sanitation,
electricity, solid waste as well as roads and stormwater, this sphere of government is still
confronted with numerous challenges that continue to constrain the ability of most
municipalities to fulfil this role. These challenges include the following:

s Lack of proper planning for the development of new infrastructure;

s Ineffective project management practices that adversely affect both the quality and
duration of projects.

+ |nadequate investment in the operation and maintenance of existing infrastructure;

s Limited human and financial resources, especially in rural municipalities, to deliver and
manage infrastructure for services provision;

= |nadequate bulk infrastructure to supply all households with basic services like water
and electricity; and

* Lack of long-term planning towards addressing infrastructure backlogs and enhancing
the sustainability of the infrastructure.

Medium Term Strategic Framework for 2019 - 2024

The Medium-Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) for the period 2019-2024 has been adopted
as the high-level strategic document to guide the implementation and monitoring of NDP over
the five-year term of the Sixth Administration. The implementation of the MTSF 2019-2024
was however disrupted by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the declaration of a
National State of Disaster on the 15 March 2020. Government had to reprioritise its plans and

> 19 -



IEESS——— |

Munictpal Infrastruciura Suppont Agent
Annusl Report 20212002

e —

budgets in response to the pandemic, which has had a deva staﬂxﬁﬁm;_ e health
and economic aspects of the lives of South Africans.

To fund government's relief measures, the President announced a R500 billion relief package
which was unveiled in the Supplementary Budget on 24 June 2021. The President also
launched the Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Plan (ERRP) on 15 October 2021,
which sought to restore much needed economic growth and employment. The combination of
all these factors has meant that the MTSF 2019-2024 had to be revised to include critical
interventions that are part of government relief and recovery efforts.

The Revised MTSF 2019-2024 continues to reflect government's pian of action over the
remaining term of the sixth administration. The Revised MTSF 2019-2024 also prioritises
government commitments to prevail over the coronavirus pandemic and to work towards
recovery. These commitments were outlined in the 2021 State of the Nation Address and
include the following focus areas:

= Firstly, to defeat the coronavirus pandemic;

= Secondly, to accelerate our economic recovery;

= Thirdly, to implement economic reforms to create sustainable jobs and drive inclusive
growth; and

= Finally, to fight corruption and strengthen the capacity of the state.

These commitments are included in the Revised MTSF 2019-2024 and will provide the focus
for annual plans.

The revised MTSF continues to focus on the seven key priorities as the pillars to enable the
achievement of NDP objectives of building a developmental state, improving the human capital
base, reducing inequalities, modermising the public service and transforming the economy.
The key seven priorities captured in the MTSF are:

s Priority 1: Economic Transformation and Job Creation

= Priority 2: Education, Skills and Health

= Priority 3: Consolidating the Social Wage through Reliable and Quality
Basic Services

s Priority 4: Spatial Integration, Human Settlements and Local Government

= Priority 5: Social Cohesion and Safe Communities

» Priority 6: A Capable, Ethical and Developmental State

= Priority 7: A Better Africa and World

Under each of these key priorities there are numerous outcomes with corresponding
interventions towards the achievement of the outcome indicator targets over a five-year period.
The work of MISA as articulated in its strategic plan and annual performance plan seeks to
contribute directly and indirectly to priorities 1, 2, 4 and 6 in that:
+ |mproved infrastructure is critical for economic transformation and job creation;
= There is an urgent need to increase the number and experience of built environment
professionals operating in the local government sphere;
» Spatial injustice remains one of the persisting legacies of apartheid which must be
eliminated; and

- ——
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« Social cohesion and safe communities, in part, get improVed:throughytfié'building of
integrated environments where everyone has access to basic services.

The Revised MTSF 2012-2024 demonstrates government's commitment to fransparency and
accountability across all spheres of government. We are determined to build a capable ethical
developmental state, where there is accountability from the highest to the lowest level of the
public service. The President has signed performance agreements with Ministers and Deputy
Ministers to hold his Cabinet accountable for the implementation of the MTSF 2019 — 2024,
These agreements are derived from the seven key priority areas that will guide government
work for the year and contain a set of specific targets backed by performance indicators for a
particular year, setting the country on a positive path to achieving our national development
goals. The Revised MTSF 2019-2024 has a clear set of outcomes, indicators and targets to
provide a clear framework for monitoring implementation by all spheres of government.

District Development Model

Government introduced the District Development Model (DDM) in 2019 to improve
coordinated planning and service delivery. This will ensure that there is coordination and
coherance in the implementation of government policies and programmes from national level
through to provinces, metros and district municipalities. The Revised MTSF 2019-2024 will be
cascaded and aligned to plans across our government to ensure that we work in an integrated
manner. The DDM was introduced by the sixth administration as the primary implementation
approach towards achieving the electoral mandate and overall development goals in an
integrated, efficient and coherent manner in district and metropolitan spaces. Through the
DDM, interventions identified in the MTSF find expression in district-level impact zones.

Relevant Court Rulings

There are no court rulings that have had an impact on MISA's strategic plan.

Policy Initiatives

The envisaged outcome of the ongoing process of amending the Municipal Systems Act, 32
of 2000 with the aim of professionalising local government would go a long way in enabling
the achievement of MISA's objective of bullding technical capacity in municipalities for
improved delivery and management of municipal infrastructure. The envisaged regulations
would compel all municipalities to appoint only suitably qualified and experienced professional
staff for the performance of technical functions.

9. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

At the beginning of the 2017/18 financial year, the Department of Public Service and
Administration granted concurrence to the approved structure for MISA. Upon obtaining this
concurrence, MISA management embarked on the filling of vacancies on the revised structure
to strengthen organisational capacity. In implementing the new structure, management
prioritised the filling of technical positions and other critical positions under the support

. —— D= S ——
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technical professionals on a permanent basis, in line with the ﬂacupatbn Speaﬁc
Dispensation (OSD) within the public service. This achievement has enabled the organisation
to progressively reduce its reliance on consultants for performing its core function of providing
technical capacity support to municipalities. The approved structure is presented below.

Figure A: Organisational Structure for Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent (MISA)
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1. AUDITOR'S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES ™t

s

The AGSAJauditor currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance
information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit
conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to
management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives
heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor's
report.

Refer to the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information, for the audit
conclusion in relation to performance information.

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
2.1 Service Delivery Environment

Local government is a primary site for the delivery of basic services in South Africa, and since
1994 tremendous progress has been made in the delivery of water, electricity, sanitation and
refuse removal - at rates of delivery unprecedented anywhere in the world. Notwithstanding
these achievements, there are areas in which local government is failing to meet the
expectations of the citizens, where a collapse in core municipal infrastructure services has
resulted in services either not being provided at all or provided at unacceptably low levels,

In 2014, CoGTA conducted a review of South Africa’s 278 municipalities, which revealed that
the top third of municipalities were managing to do the basics right and perform their functions
at least adequately. Within this group, there is a small group of top performers that are doing
extremely well. The middle third of municipalities reviewed are fairly functional but still
characterised by worrying signs of poor performance or decline. This middle group can be
classed as 'at risk’, since if left, unchecked these could lead to a further decline. The bottom
third of municipalities are frankly dysfunctional, and the basic mechanisms to perform their
functions are not in place. These municipalities were found to be failing the citizens, and urgent
intervention was considered necessary in order to correct the decay in the system. In support
of the implementation of the Back-to-Basics programme, MISA refocused its programmes to
align with the approach and to complement efforts of other branches within DCOG and other
role players.

It is important to indicate that MISA has been operating within the institutional arrangement
created for the implementation of back lo basics. MISA's programme management teams in
various provinces will continue to vigorously participate in the provincial task teams and the
district crack teams driving the B2B implementation in municipalities. A process of reallocating
resources to align the support with the district approach that has been intraduced through the
B2B is currently in motion. Simultaneously, a review of MISA operational model will be
undertaken with the objective of improving the effectiveness of the support programmes and
to ensure that our technical professionals respond with greater speed to instances of
infrastructure failures.

- 24 —_
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The implementation of the Back-to-Basics approach naces-.\éﬂifam_gh ME},}W’S
operational approach to ensure that the provincial teams become maore ras?unsiva le the
challenges facing municipalities. The approach of assigning individual professionals to focus
on one or more municipalities over a period of time was deemed to be out of sync with the
imperatives of back to basics. To address this deficiency in the operational model, MISA
initiated a process of aligning with the district approach that required the establishment of
multi-disciplinary teams based at the district level for the purpose of supporting all

municipalities within a particular district on the basis of their respective needs and problems,

This operating approach is aligned with the District Development Model (DDM) that was
initiated by CoGTA during the 2020/21 financial year. The DDM identifies the district or
metropolitan space as the platform of integrating planning and implementation of development
programmes at local government level. Operating with the auspices of the DDM, MISA has
been assigned the responsibility of coordinating efforts of role player involved in the municipal
infrastructure value change to ensure integration of support to local government in
infrastructure and service delivery.

During the year under review, the MTSF for 2019 — 2024 was revised and subsequently
endorsed by the Cabinet Lekgotla in September 2021. MISA as with other government
departments and public entities also started with reporting on the revised MTSF from the third
quarter of the 2021/22 financial year. In addition to the implementation of the revised MTSF,
MISA in the third quarter of the year under review, also received additional funding through
the Presidential Employment Stimulus (PES) programme to support municipalities in piloting
the implementation of innovative technologies and/or methods for solid waste management
solutions. The receiving of the additional funding in quarter three placed pressure on the
institution in utilising the funding fully due to the limited human resource capacity at the
agency's disposal, in addition to the very short period available in spending the additional
funding provided. As funding that has been ringfenced for the PES programme, MISA will be
requesting National Treasury that the unspent funding be roll-over to the 2022/23 financial
year as commitments have been made in terms of the unspent budget allocation from the PES
programme.

2.2 Organisational Environment

MISA appointed the Deputy Director General: Technical Support Services (TSS) during the
financial year under review thus rendering the top management structure of the institution fully
capacitated.

Management made significant strides in filling vacancies on the approved staff establishment
as reflected in the lower vacancy rate of 13% as at the end of the financial year under review.
The agency experienced the challenge of high staff turnover among the technical
professionals appointed in terms of the Occupation Specific Dispensation (OSD). The
relatively high turnover rate in this employee category is due to the high demand for technically
skilled personnel that pushes up remuneration levels in the private sector. To mitigate the risk
of instability caused by frequent resignations, management developed a staff retention
strategy paying particular attention to professional engineers. MISA started implementing the
retention strategy, however gains are yet to be realised as the implementation only started in
the last quarter of the financial year.
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2.3 Key Policy Developments and Legislative Ehangav

There were no changes in policies and legislation with a bearing on the operations of the
organisation during the year under review.
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2.4.2 Progress towards achievement of five-year tam;ﬁ“hmm
indicators

I

MISA continued to provide support to the 44 district Municipalities to have access to
sustainable services through strengthening of municipalities' capacity that provides reliable
municipal infrastructure in a manner that creates jobs for local communities and contributes to
economic growth. Support to each of these municipalities was set out in the technical support
plan (TSP) and supported by the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) developed jointly by
MISA Provincial teams with the respective Municipalities. Although technical support provided
by MISA has enabled municipalities to undertake activities relating to planning, infrastructure
development and maintenance, most municipalities continue to experience a disruption in
services like the provisioning of non- revenue water and MISA through the development and
implementation of water conversation and water demand plans has managed in the past year
to improve water management system for the benefit of all in the Communities.

30 Selected districts have been identified for support on operations and maintenance activities
to reduce the 8% target in our five-year strategic plan. Although municipalities consistently
underspend on their Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) allocation resulting in stopping and
reallocation of funds to the detriment of communities expecting the delivery of services, MISA
has consistently supported these Municipalities to achieve 90% of their expenditure in the
previous financial year. With the launch of the district development model MISA has supported
44 districts that were able to develop their coordinated infrastructure plans in the one plan.

MISA has supported 30 municipalities with the development and implementation of SPLUMA
compliant plans {(Land Use Management Schemes (LUMS), Spatial Development
Frameworks (SDF's), Integrated Development Plans (IDP’s), etc.). MISA also supported a
further 8 districts to improve their infrastructure asset management practices, over-above this,
MISA successfully motivated for the revision of the MIG framework to allocate 5% on annual
bases for development/review of Asset Management Plans and further annual allocation of
10% catering for repairs & maintenance of infrastructure. 10 district municipalities were
identified and supported with the development and/or implementation of Water Conservation
or Water Demand Management (WC/WDM) strategies, with a further 10 districts supported
with the implementation of Integrated Waste Management (IWM) services. MISA also
identified 10 districts to develop electricity strategies and implementation of these strategies
that assisted in improving capacity to deliver access to electricity services.

All these programmes will contribute towards reduction of backlogs, creating reliable
infrastructure provision and improvement of service delivery.

Assessment on infrastructure condition and municipal capacity in 6 districts was undertaken
to assess the functionality of water and sanitation infrastructure including capacity to maintain
infrastructure assets and implement infrastructure projects within these municipalities. Areas
where municipalities need to improve on functionality and general performance of water and
sanitation infrastructure as well human capacity were identified. These assessments
contributed towards the number of districts supported to improve capacity to deliver
infrastructure to increase access to water and sanitation services. The next step in the new
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financial year would involve further interaction with municipalities«-lo adviseron areas of
improvement recommending alternative technologies where required.

Initiatives undertaken in the 2021/22 financial year to improve efficiency in Infrastructure
management, through increased municipal technical capacity in 44 Districts, include the
following:

=  MISA contributed towards creating a technical skills pipeline in municipalities through
placement of 282 youth (learners and candidates) in host municipalities across the
country.

s A total of 519 municipal officials, from 39 Districts, attended MISA facilitated technical
skills training causes in areas such as:

Road Construction, Maintenance & Rehabilitation:

General Conditions of contracts (GCC) 2015;

Estirmating, Costing and Pricing of Construction;

Advanced Water Treatment Processes;

SPLUMA Guidelines for Special Development Framework;

Fundamentals of Procurement & Tendering;

Pressure pipeline and pump station design and specifications; and

Development of asset management plans.

D o O O o0 0 gk

= 57 municipal general workers, from 08 Districts, were enrolled in the MISA Recognition
of Prior Learning (RPL) Programme to enhance their lechnical skills and work towards
obtaining formal qualifications.

» MISA supported 15 pilot municipalities from 07 Districts in implementing their Municipal
Capacity Development Plans. The support provided was aimed at promoting
ownership of capacity development amongst municipalities, whilst enhancing
coordination of capacity support that is provided by other stakeholders. The ultimate
objective is to strengthen the capacity of municipalities to manage their affairs, exercise
their powers and perform their functions in a sustainable manner.

During 2021/22 financial year seven (7) local municipalities (spread across 5 district
municipalities) were supported to implement the long-term infrastructure investment plans and
seven (7) municipalities (spread across 6 district municipalities) were support with the
accessing of alternative funding sources. Five (5) municipalities were supported on climate
change mitigation and adaption funding. Over the next outer years of the MTEF, the unit will
continue to collaborate with the financiers and other relevant stakeholders (SALGA, National
Treasury, etc.) to extend the support to other districts that have not been supported.

Over the MTEF period, The Framework Contracts and Infrastructure Procurement focuses on
supporting municipalities with the institutionalization of Infrastructure Delivery Management
System (IDMS) in order to improve planning, delivery and procurement of infrastructure goods,
services and works. The programme also provides municipalities with alternative procurement
stralegy through the use of framework contracls to improve infrastructure procurement
efficiencies and shorten procurement period. All these programmes were implemented
utilising the operational budget. Eight (B) Municipalities were supported with the

T e _ = S —
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implementation of IDMS whilst twenty-five (25) Mummpalihasm with the
enhancement of infrastructure procurement practices to improve c:apamty tu deliver
infrastructure to increase access to water services for both local and districts supported over
five years.

Annual Performance Plan Revision 2021/22
Re-tabled APP 14 December 2021
DPME issued circular 2 of 2021 to provide guidance on the revision and re-tabling of the

2021/22 Annual Performance Plans (APPs) and the 2020-2025 Strategic Plans (SPs), where
applicable. DPME identified the following factors to be considered when revising APPs and/or

SPs:

. July 2021 unrest in KwaZulu-Natal, Gauteng and other parts of the country;

. Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown on service delivery;

. Budget adjustments; and

. Government interventions such as the Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Plan

(ERRP).

MISA has decided to revise its annual performance plan due to the continuous impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the economic recovery changes that has adversely impacted on the
entity's ability to achieve performance targets in respect of one output and two output
indicators in the approved APP. In addition to the latest Presidential Employment Stimulus
package approval for MISA through the Infrastructure Delivery Management Support (IDMS)
Programme to implement the Innovative waste management solutions for 25 municipalities,
MISA has added this new indicator to our proposed revised APP for 2021/22.

3. INSTITUTIONAL PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

3.1 PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

Purpose: The Administration Programme the programme ensures effective leadership,
strategic management and administrative support to the Municipal Infrastructure Support
Agent in line with applicable legislation and best practice.

Programme overview: The programme serves as the enabler to the key functions of the
organisation. It has the following sub-programmes:

3.1.1. Sub-programme: Executive Support, Strategy and Systems

Executive Support, Strategy and Systems sub-programme reporis directly to the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and provides strategic management support to the organisation. It
consists of the following functions:

Strategic Management, Monitoring and Evaluation facilitate the formulation of strategic plan

and annual performance plan. It is also responsible for institutional performance assessment
and for conducting programme evaluation.

~ . 31 >
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Executive Support provides executive support services to the Chief- i ffice —

management. It also provides administrative and secretariat supﬁbn tn > the. agency's
management and oversight structures, including the Audit Committee.

Government Information and Communication Technology (GICTM) performs information
communication technology business enablement and governance services. It is also
responsible for information and knowledge management function.

Internal Audit Services reports to the Chief Executive Officer for administrative purposes and
functionally to the Audit Committee. It facilitates the performance of internal and forensic
audits. It also provides technical support to the Audit Committee.

Risk, Anti-corruption and Integrity sub-directorate is responsible for managing the
provision of organisational risks and integrity management, and anti-corruption services. The
sub-directorate reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer and is separate from Internal
Audit Services.

3.1.2 Sub-programme: Corporate Management Services

Corporate Management Services sub programme reports directly to the Chief Executive
Officer and provides administrative support to the entire organisation. It consists of the
following functions:

Human Resource Management and Development provides the human resource
administration and development services. It is also responsible for labour relations and
employee wellness services within the organisation.

Legal Services provides legal advice to the organisation, litigation support and ensures
compliance with the national and international laws. It also assists the organisation with the
drafting and monitoring of service level agreements between MISA and external parties.

Security and Facilities Management Services is responsible for ensuring that both staff and
other resources within the organisation are protected and that the work environment is
conducive for productive performance.

Communications is responsible for managing the provision of communication services within
the organisation. It provides both internal and external communication services, media liaison
support, public liaison, events management, publication and photo journalism support, as well
as developing and maintaining the departmental website.

3.1.3 Sub-programme: Financial Management Services

Financial Management Services manages and faciltate the provision of financial
management services and reports to the Chief Executive Officer. It consists of the following
functions:

Financial Accounting and Administration develops and oversee the implementation of financial
administration and accounting policies, processes and systems. Its main aim is to ensure that
the financial resources allocated to the agency are optimally utilised.

~_ 32 >
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Management Accounting provides guidance on the preparation ufbudgaisand monitors the
expenditure trends in an ongoing basis. 5

Supply Chain and Asset Management facilitates the development and monitors the
implementation of supply chain management policies, processes and systems. It also provides
procurement and asset management support within the organisation.

Internal Control and Compliance facilitates the development and implementation of an internal
control system to improve governance and compliance with applicable regulations, internal

policies, processes and procedures. It is also responsible for fraud prevention and loss
management.

3.1.4 Programme Institutional Outcome(s) contribution

The programme is contributing to the following outcome(s):
» |Improved governance, administrative support system and ethical practices.

CONSTRUCTION OF WASTEWATER TREATMENT WORKS AT BHOKWE
VILLAGE.
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Strategy to Overcome Areas of Under Performance \\’

Annual performance targets for all key performance indicators under the Administration
Programme were achieved. Accordingly, it is not necessary to devise a stralegy to overcome
under performance.

Linking Performance with Budget

Administration | 92 735 91 714 1021 91 D69 82 B65 9104

The biggest proportion of the budget allocated for goods and services under the Administration
Programme covered the costs of services provided to the agency in relation to Facilities
Management, Internal Audit and ICT functions. Spending on the budget allocated for these
services was relatively good with only about 1% of the allocated budget remaining unspent as
at the end of the financial year. This spending contributed to the achievement of all the
performance targets under the Administration branch. The level of spending over the entire
financial year for the programme stood at about 99% as at 31 March 2022.

3.2 PROGRAMME 2: TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES

Purpose: The purpose of Technical Support Services programme seeks to enhance the
capabilities of municipalities for Improved municipal infrastructure planning, delivery,
operations and maintenance. Its main focus is to manage the provision of technical support
and capabilities to enhance the management of municipal infrastructure support programmes
by:
= providing assistance to selected municipalies in conducting Infrastructure
assessment and analysis;
= providing technical support and expertise to enable the delivery, planning,
maintenance and land use management services in collaboration with relevant
stakeholders; and
« coordinating the development of technical skills to support the delivery of municipal
infrastructure programmes.

Programme overview: The Programme coordinate the provision of technical support and
assistance in conducting infrastructure assessments and analysis; coordinate the provision of
technical support and expertise for municipal infrastructure delivery, planning, maintenance
and land use management services with relevant stakeholders; coordinate the development
of technical skills to support the delivery of municipal infrastructure support programmes.
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The Programme consists of the following suh-pmgrammeﬁi“‘*'-;._v-. R

3.2.1 Sub-programme: Infrastructure Assessment and Analysis

The primary aim of the sub-programme is to lay a sound basis for establishing the support
requirements for each of the selected municipalities. This determination is based on the on
the outcome of the assessment of infrastructure assets condition, review of infrastructure
maintenance budgets and expenditure trends and assessment of backlogs on access to basic
service, among other focus areas. This assessment allows MISA to design support and
intervention plans that appropriately response to the predetermined needs for each targeted
municipality.

322 Sub-programme: Infrastructure Delivery, Maintenance and Stakeholders
Coordination

The sub-programme provides technical support to municipalities based on the needs identified
during the assessment and analysis stage. It also provides support to municipalities in relation
to planning for land use management and spatial development frameworks. Furthermore, the
IDMSC is responsible for coordinating other role-players such as sector departments, state-
owned companies and provincial government towards the integrated delivery of municipal
infrastructure.

3.2.3 Sub-programme: Technical Skills

The main role of this sub-programme is to strengthen the capacity within municipalities for
planning, delivery and maintenance of municipal infrastructure. This is achieved by facilitating
workplace opportunities in municipalities for graduates, apprentices and learners in technical
disciplines and technical training for municipal officials. It further support municipalities in the
recruitment of qualified technical personnel and mentoring of learners placed in municipalities
for workplace learning.

3.2.4 Programme Institutional Outcome(s) contribution

The programme is contributing to the following outcome(s):

s Effective water management system for the benefit of all;

= Efficiency in infrastructure management;

= Enhanced intergovernmental and interdepartmental coordination through the
implementation of the District Development Model;

s A spatially just and transformed national space economy that enables equal access
to social services and economic opportunities in cities, regions and rural areas; and

» Improved municipal capacity to deliver basic services, quality infrastructure and
integrated public transport to increase household access to basic services.
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Strategy to Overcome Areas of Under Performance \\‘,

Recruitment of additional experiential learners will commence early in the financial year to
mitigate for delays in response handling as a result of the volume of applications received as
well as verification of qualifications and conducting criminal record checks. Early procurement
of service providers for assessment, training and trade testing of municipal officials will assist
in mitigating and accelerating implementation of the Recognition of Prior Learning
Programme.

MISA is in the process of devolving some of its capacity development initiatives to
municipalities with the view to optimising ownership of the programmes at a local level. This
will circumvent some of the implementation challenges whilst empowering municipalities to
take ownership of capacity development initiatives.

Within the YG programme, a pipeline that considers bursary recipients from MISA has been
included in the YG policy to ensure that they are able to be part of the programme upon
completion of their studies and that has assisted in creating additional resources required to
fill in the targeted number of YG's within a financial year.

Linking Performance with Budget

TSS 272113 267 104 5009 291 807 163 005 128 802

The level of spending on this programme over the entire financlal year stood at about 98% as
at 31 March 2022. Funds allocated for the three APP output targets not achieved were
absorbed by other projects to which the agency committed before the end of the previous
financial year. It was then envisaged that such commitments would be funded from funding
retained from the 2020/21 budget. National Treasury did not approve MISA’s application for
retention of such funds amounting to R117 million leaving the agency with potential shortfall
in allocation for goods and services. It is against this background, savings accruing from
missed APP targets were relied on up to prevent overspending.

3.3 PROGRAMME 3: INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY MANAGEMENT SUPPORT

Purpose: The purpose of the Infrastructure Delivery Management Support (IDMS) Support
programme is to provide support to municipalities in the implementation of infrastructure
projects, as well as operations and maintenance of existing infrastructure.

Programme Overview: The programme's objective is to deliver infrastructure projects on
behalf of identified municipalities and provide infrastructure financing, procurement and
contract management guidance and advice to municipalities. It will focus on the development
of institutional capacity of municipalities to procure and contract manage infrastructure
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projects efficiently and effectively. Through the Programme, MISA-sho
place national framework contracts for municipal infrastructure goods and sanr

The Programme consists of the following sub-programmes:

3.3.1 Sub-proegramme: Project Management

The sub-programme is responsible for coordinating the provision of technical support to
municipalities in respect of project management, infrastructure procurement and contract
management processes.

3.3.2 Sub-programme: Framework Contracts and Infrastructure Procurement
The sub-programmes focusses on the development and implementation of national framewaork

contracts for procuring municipal infrastructure goods and services. It also focusses on
managing the development of municipal infrastructure strategies and systems. The support to
municipalities in relation to procurement entails the building of institutional capabilities in
municipalities to ensure efficient procurement of municipal infrastructure goods and services.

3.3.3 Sub-programme: Infrastructure Financing

The sub-programme facilitates the exploitation of alternative and innovative mechanisms for
financing municipal infrastructure and the management of Municipal Infrastructure Grant
(MIG) programme. The MIG programme is currently managed by the Department of
Cooperative Governance (DCOG) but is provided for under MISA organizational structure in
anticipation of the planned transfer of the programme lo MISA.

3.3.4 Programme Institutional Outcome(s) contribution

The programme is contributing to the following outcome(s):

» Efficiency in infrastructure management;
+ Long term municipal infrastructure investment; and
+ |ncreased access lo climate change mitigation and adaptation funds by municipalities
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Strategy to Overcome Areas of Under Performance v

Annual performance targets for all key performance indicators under the Administration
Programme were achieved. Accordingly, it is not necessary to devise a stralegy to overcome
under performance.

Linking Performance with Budgets

IDMS 1314023 | 89734 | 224288 38377 19257 | 19120

The overall level of spending of budget allocated to the IDMS Programme for the year was
29% as at 31 March 2022. The significant amount of under expenditure is attributable mainly
to the delayed transfer of funds amounting to R284 million that was exclusively earmarked for
the solid waste management programme. These funds were received only in November 2021
resulting in the late commencement of programme implementation. MISA intends to apply for
retention of the balance of this allocation that remained unspent as at the end of the financial
year to cover the costs of the programme rollout.
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", e
Narrative Report on the External and Internal Interventions :m}lw_m. qﬁjhﬁiﬁ“ .
COVID-19 pandemic

External Environment

The nation-wide lockdown introduced at the end of March 2021 following the declaration of
the national state of disaster in response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic by the
President of the Republic of South Africa fundamentally changed the operational environment
for both MISA and municipalities. MISA's institutional response to the COVID-19 pandemic
included amongst others, the drilling of boreholes, the purchasing of water tanks, equipping
boreholes with solar power, construction of pump houses and refurbishment of existing
boreholes. MISA spent a total of R65 931 140.00 and further R41 million was provided by
social partner Development Bank of South Africa (DBSA) towards COVID-19 interventions
within the following six (6) provinces; Eastern Cape, Northern Cape, Kwazulu Natal, Free
State, North West and Limpopo. The table above shows that the interventions undertaken by
MISA towards our COVID-19 response benefitted over 47 000 households across 5 district
and 13 local municipalities.

In addition to the above response MISA contributed to the employment stimulus package of
Presidency by supporting 23 municipalities with programmes that enhances job opportunities
for the unemployed through labor-intensive infrastructure maintenance in municipalities. This
Employment Stimulus Package seeks to build a new economy through public investment in a
mass employment strategy.

MISA interventions entailed siting, drilling, vield testing, water quality testing, equipping, and
commissioning of borehole infrastructure; springs revival & protection, building storage
reservoirs, reticulation drawing water closer to the houses and these municipalities were
selected due to that the communities are walking long distances to fetch water and sometimes
sharing the water with animals and there is high exposure for these communities to diseases
as a result.

Municipalities who envisaged under expenditure were requested to reprioritize the MIG funds
towards implementation of water and sanitation projects as part of COVID-19 intervention. In
addition, the Department of Water and Sanitation provided storage tanks and water trucks to
high- and medium density informal areas with unreliable or no water supply. Soap, bleach and
hand sanitizers were also distributed to assist to try and curb the spreading of COVID-19

These villages mentioned above in the table were selected for MISA intervention following
complaints received from the communities as the areas did not have reliable water supply.
The establishment of COVID 12 National, Provincial and District Joint Operating Centers
manitored the implementation of COVID 19 intervention at all spheres of government. MISA
is serving on these structures to provide technical support.

Internal Environment

In line with the regulatory prescripts, measures including the procurement and distribution of
COVID-19 PPE (including cloth masks, latex gloves, sanitisers, thermometers), relevant
communigues and updates circulated, distance markings maintained in areas likely to have
many people gathered, employee workspaces social distanced, rotation rosters developed
and implemented, and the workplace being fumigated or disinfected as and when the need

= - 70 . ,;_:‘--':'
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arose continued to be implemented during the financial year. ' en 2
COVID-19 cases during the financial year, and all the cases were rapnrtad m the Daparm'lsm
of Public Service and Administration. Where these employees had come into close contact
with other employees, these contacts were traced and approved to self-quarantine for the
prescribed period. A total amount of R62 768, 50 was spent on COVID-19 PPE during the
financial year 2021/22.

4. Revenue Collection

Sources of Revenue 2021/22 202021
Estimate Actual (Ower) Estimate Actual {Over)
Amount !Under Amount {Under
Collected Collection Collected Collection
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'O0O R'000
Sale of Tender|- - - - - -
Documents
Sale of scrap Assets | - - - - - -
LGSETA Grant for | - Z = = 2411 (2.411)
Apprenticeship
Programme
Interest Received - 8 685 (B 6GBS) - 3v7e (3 778)
Total - 8 685 (B 685) - G189 (6 189)

5. Capital Investment

During the year under review MISA did not implement any capital projects. There were no
capital projects under implementation at the beginning of the financial year. MISA also did not
own, acquire or dispose of any asset or facility of capital in nature during the period under
review.
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1. INTRODUCTION ~ el

The Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent (MISA) is a government component established
in terms of Section 7(5) (c) of the Public Service Act (Proclamation 103 of 1994). lts main
objective is to render technical advice and support to municipalities to enable optimal provision
of basic services infrastructure. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Municipal MISA is
the accounting officer for the entity in terms of Section 36(3) (b) of the Public Finance
Management Act, No. 1 of 1999, as amended. As a ring-fenced component within the
Cooperate Governance and Traditional Affairs (CoGTA) portfolio, MISA is directly accountable
to the Minister as the designated Executive Authority (EA) for the portfolio. The Minister, in
turn, accounts for MISA's operations and performance to Parliament, as the ultimate oversight
authority over the work of the Executive in government. MISA has since established a robust
system of governance and accountability that has enabled it to consistently comply with
relevant legislation, effectively applied its internal controls, managed key risks and maintain a
reasonably high level of performance against its annual performance plan targets.

Sound governance is maintained by conducting the entity's businesses in line with internal
policies, consistent implementation of internal control system, promoting ethical behaviour,
enfarcing the Code of Conduct and reinforcing a culture of high performance among
employees. For the purposes of accountability in terms of the PFMA, MISA is required to
operate and report on its financial performance in line with the prescripts applicable to trading
entities, Various assurance structures have been established to draw management'’s attention
to internal control weaknesses and emerging risks that might hamper the achievement of the
entity's objectives. Two key assurance providers are Internal Audit and the Audit Committee.
Internal audit contributes to the maintenance of sound governance by conducting reviews on
various operational areas within the entity. The Audit Committee performs an oversight
function as outlined in the Audit Committee Charter. Management within MISA assumes full
responsibility under the guidance of the CEO for the entity’s operations aimed at the fulfilment
of its allotted mandate.

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
MISA was invited to brief the Portfolio Committee on Cooperative Governance and Traditional

Affairs on specific matters. Accordingly, MISA management attended the Committee meetings
as summarised in the table below:

COMMITTEE | DATE OF FOCUS AREAS OF RISK REMEDIAL
MEETING | AREA ACTIONS
IMPLEMENTED
Portfolio 09 Briefing to | The PC requested  The report with all
Committee on | November | the COGTA | MISA to: requested
Cooperative 2021 Portfolio Provide report / list of | information  was
Governance Committee | all water boreholes | submitted to the
and Traditional on MisA  completed in all| office  of the
Affairs Annual fnrzx:gcijirﬁes Director General:
Report for Iccalinﬁs withlcosts. DCOG on the 18
2020/21 November 2021 for
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2022

retention of
funds
unspent
from
2020/21
budget
allocation
for MISA

COMMITTEE |DATE OF | FOCUS | AREASOFRISK | REMEDIAL
MEETING | AREA ACTIONS
Financial Provide report on all | onward forwarding
Year water  infrastructure | to the Portfolio
reticulation projects,  Committee.
water and waste
management plants
projects including
costs of each project
implemented by MISA
and other key projects.
22 March | Request for | MISA & DCoG should | The engagements

continue to engage
with  the  National
Treasury to transfer
funds/rollovers back to
MISA as they were
already committed.

between MISA and
Mational Treasury
are ongoing. MISA
will notify  the
Portfolio
Committee as
soon as the matter
is concluded.
Mational Treasury
has yet to provide
the final response
to MISA's appeal
letter.

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

During the year under review, the Accounting Officer for MISA compiled and submitted the
following reports to the Executive Authority.

Report Submitted

Date

of Comments by the Action Taken
Submission Executive Authority

Fourth Quarter | 30 April | N/A N/A

2020/21 Performance | 2021

Report

First Quarter 2021/22 | 29 July 2021 | N/A N/A

Performance Report

Second Quarter | 27 October | There needs to bework | Al 15 municipalities
2021/22 Performance | 2021 made on the Labour- | identified undertook
Report Intensive Projects training for the candidates

on NQF level 5 and 7
courses. In  addition,
stakeholder engagements
were intensified,
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N
Comments by the Action Taken
Executive Authority

Annual Report for | 15
2020/21 September

2021
Third Quarter 2020/21 | 27 January | N/A N/A
Performance Report 2022
Annual Performance | 09  March | N/A N/A
Plan for 2022/23 2022

4. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD

Section 7A(4)(e) of the Public Service Act, 1994, empowers the relevant Executive Authority
(EA) lo exercise the option of establishing an advisory board for a government component.
During the year under review, the Minister approved the proposed establishment of an
advisory board for the Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent (MISA) as provided for in the
legislation. This approval kickstarted the process of appointing members of the inaugural
board for MISA. This process remained in progress as at the end of the financial year under
review. The envisaged advisory board for MISA the advisory board being established will not
assume any executive powers since the legislation prohibit the granting of such powers to an
advisory board.

Prior to commencing with the process of appointing members of the advisory board, the
Minister approved and signed the amendments to the Operational Notice on Administration
and Operations of MISA ('Operational MNotice'). The main objective of amending the
Operational Notice was to amplify the process of establishing the board, its functions and the
skills set required of potential board members. In terms of the amended Operational Notice
the role and functions of MISA Advisory Board entails rendering advise to MISA on strategies
and programmes, encompassing the implementation of the District Development Model
{DDM), special planning and spatial transformation.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

MISA has an approved Risk Management Policy and Strategy. These policy documents are
presented and endorsed by both the Risk Management and the Audit Committee to ensure
that they comply with the National Treasury Framework for managing Risks.

MISA has a functional Risk Management Committee chaired by an independent external
member. Members were formally appointed by the Accounting Officer and did comply with the
approved terms of reference. The Risk Management Committee meets on a quarterly basis to
evaluate and monitor risks identified and advise for improvements. Risk Management reports
are also discussed at management meetings to ensure that timeous mitigation of risks is
implemented to improve organisational performance. The Unit has resuscitated the
appointment risk champions during the period under review which led to the improvement in
risk mitigating strategies.
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The Strategic Risk Assessment for 2022/23 was conducted, and“ﬂ'ﬁ: isk assessn ant report,
including the risk register was approved by the Accounting Officer and andnrsad by bnth tha
Risk Management and the Audit Committee. Furthermore, the operational risk assessments

were conducted and signed-off by the relevant Programme Managers, which culminated into
various risk registers.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Internal Control unit has performed the following activities during the financial year under
review:

= Developed and monitored the implementation of actions to address control
deficiencies identified during the audit by both Internal Audit and the Auditor-General.

= Reviewed payment batches, quotation batches, bids files for accuracy, completeness
and checked compliance with applicable policies and procedures across the
organisation to ensure that the department maintains an effective, efficient and
transparent internal control system.

» Reviewed the information requested by the Auditor-General (AG) and Internal Audit
before submission to the auditors to ensure completeness, reliability and accuracy.

s Kept the accurate reqgister for MISA policies and report to the Audit Committee every
quarter about the status of policies.

= Monitoring, review and reporting of unauthorised, irregular, fruitiess and wasteful
expenditure to the Accounting Officer and National Treasury.

» Provided advice to other units within the entity regarding matters related to audit
findings and internal controls.

7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
7.1  Key Activities and Objectives of Internal Audit

Internal Audit derives its mandate from the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). It is
administratively accountable to the Accounting Officer and functionally reports to the Audit
Committee. The Unit is required to prepare its plans in consultation with and for approval by
the Audit Committee. Internal Audit worked as an independent, objective assurance and a
consulting unit designed to add value and improve the entity's operations. It helps the entity
to accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. The unit
performed the following activities in line with its approved Internal Audit Charter:

« Develop and implement a rolling three-year strategic and the annual coverage plan
based on the risk assessment conduct by the entity.

« Execute the audits as per the approved internal audit plan.

« Report to the audit committee on progress made against the approved audit plan to
allow effective monitoring and intervention when necessary.

= A periodic annual assessment for the 2021/22 financial year was conducted in
accordance with the |lA standards and the Internal Audit Methodology on the selected
audit files and presented to the Audit Committee for noting. Progress on the
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assessment is reviewed by the Committee on a quartarly basis and Lh adi
Activity complied with the IlA code of ethics and standards. This W'Ill assisi the unit in
preparation for the external assessment to be conducted every five years.

7.2  Summary of Audit Work Done

Basis of Assessment

Our control assessment opinion is based on the results of all the audits performed by Internal
Awudit for the year ended 31 March 2022 as follows:

Auditable Area Assessment by Internal Audit

1.Review of Annual Financial Statements (2020/21)

2.Review of Performance Information {Pre-determined
Objectives) quarter 4 of 2020/21 Financial Year

3. Review of Performance Information (Pre-determined
Objectives) quarter 1

4. Review of Performance Information (Pre-determined
Objectives) quarter 2

5. Review of Performance Information (Pre-determined
Objectives) quarter 3

6. Verification of Post Audit Action Plan (PAAP) quarter 4 | Needs Improvement

7. Verification of Post Audit Action Plan (PAAP) quarter 3 | Needs Improvement

8. Verification of Post Audit Action Plan (PAAP) quarter 2 | Needs Improvement

9. Verification of Post Audit Action Plan (PAAP) quarter 1 | Needs Improvement

10. Review of Protection of Personal Information ' Needs Improvement
Act(POPIA)

11. Review of Recruitment and Selection

12. Review of the Framework Contracts Needs Improvement
13. Review of Assets Management Needs Improvement
4_ Review of Filing and Records Management Needs Improvement

15. Review of Infrastructure Projects
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Auditable Area Assessment by Internal Audit
16. Review on the Corporate Governance Needs Improvement
The Internal Audit function arrived at their overall opinicn based on the rating scale below:
The table below summaries our overall opinion which was determined based on the audit
results for the period under review:

Opinion Description
Controls in place provide reasonable assurance that the
organization’s risks have been managed effectively and that
the organization's goals and objectives will be achieved
efficiently and economically.

Needs Improvement Controls in place provide some assurance that the
organization’s risks have been managed however
considerable improvement is needed to effectively manage the
risk and ensuring that goals and objectives are achieved
efficiently and economically.

Controls in place do not provide reasonable assurance that the
organization’s risks have been managed effectively and that
the organization's goals and objectives will be achieved
efficiently and economically.
Overall Assessment of Controls Environment
MNeed Improvements
Our overall assessment of the environment is as shown above — Needs Improvements
Governance - | ood Improvements
Our assessment of the governance processes indicate that appropriate oversight structures
are in place and functioning with responsibilities allocated in line with the approved
Governance Framework. Structures largely exercise their oversight roles with areas of
improvement noted in certain areas such as compliance management. The Audit Committee
meets regularly as required and deliberate on financial, audit and other matters as necessary
B I et = e
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Risk Management - | Need Improvements \\\,

MISA has a functional Risk Management Committee chaired by an external member.
Members were formally appointed by the Accounting Officer and did comply with the approved
terms of reference. The Risk Management Committee meets on a quarterly basis to evaluate
and monitor risks identified and advise for improvements. Risk Management reports are also
discussed al management meetings to ensure that timeous mitigation of risks is implemented
to improve organisational performance. During the review of corporate governance, of which
risk management as one of the critical governance structures within the institution we noted
that there was reasonable improvement in addressing identified risks, which led to the
improved control environment in the last two quarters of the financial year.

Internal Controls -

Need Improvements

The audit reviews are undertaken in 2021/22 generally show that the system of internal contral
needs improvements within MISA. Areas where controls can be improved in terms of design
and effectiveness were noted in key areas audited. We have made recommendations to
management around the weaknesses identified, and we hope that a tightening of controls
across the board will significantly improve the internal controls environment.

7.3  Key Activities and Objectives of the Audit Committee

The committee performs ils activities in line with the approved charter. The committee

7.4  Audit Committee Meetings by Committee Members

The table below discloses relevant information on the Audit Committee members and
Committee meetings during the financial year under review:

Qualifications Internal or Date Appointed Date No. of

External Resigned Meetings
Attended

Dr Prittish | PHD (Information Member

Dala Technaology) (UP), Member appointed on 01
Masters (Information July 2020
Technology)
(University of Pretoria)
BSC Hons (Computer

Science), (UJ)
Bachelor of Information
Technology, (Bond
University),
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Qualifications internal or Date Appointed Date No. of

External Resigned Meetings
Attended
Certified Information
Systems (CISA),
Certified Information
Security Manager (CISM),

Certified Information
System Security (CISSP),
Lead Auditor ISO
27001(LA 1SO 27001),
Certified in the Governance
of Enterprise Information
Technology (CGEIT)
Certified in Risk and
Information Systemns
(CRISC),

Certified Ethical Hacker
(CEH),

Computer Hacking
Forensic Investigator
{CHFI), and Certified Data
Privacy Solutions Engineer
(CDPSE)

Ms N
Lubanga

MNational Diploma (Internal | External Member N/A 5
Auditing) Member appointed on 01
(Walter Sisulu University), July 2020
BCom (Internal Auditing)
(UNISA),

Executive Development
Programme (WITS),
Postgraduate Diploma
Internal Auditing
(UNISA),

Postgraduate Diploma
General Management
(GIBS),

Internal Control and Risk
Management
(University of Pretoria)

Mr L
Makibinya
ne

B.ENG(Hons) External Member MN/A 5
(University of Teesside) Member appointed on 01
Post Graduate Certificate July 2020

(MDP)
UNISA
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Qualifications Internal or Daﬁr Appointed Date No.

External Resigned Meetings
Attended

MBL (UNISA)

Ms C (CA) SA External Member N/A 5
Abdoll BCompt Honours Member appointed on 01
(UNISA), May 2021
BCom ( University of
Western Cape),
Postgraduate Diploma in
Internal Audit,

Certified Internal
Auditing(l1A)

Mr S (CA) SA, External Member N/A 5
Gounden | Charted Director (SA), Member appointed on 01
Postgraduate Diploma in May 2021
Accountancy (UDW),
BCompt (UNISA)

8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

MISA has developed irregular and expenditure framework, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
framework, and Delegation of Authority as measures to ensure consistent compliance with
laws and regulations relating to Supply Chain Management, Financial Management and
Human Resource Management, as well as other functional areas. Accredited service provider
was appointed to audit and measure the extent of Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment (B-BBEE) in terms of section 13(G)(1) of the B-BBEE Act and regulations 12(2)
and B-BBEE compliance report was submitted to B-BBEE Commission.

9. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

MISA has developed a fraud prevention plan as to fulfil the Treasury Regulation 27.2.1
requirement. MISA's Fraud Prevention Plan Strategy integrates the processes, policies
resources to minimise the risk of fraud and corruption. The Fraud and Corruption Prevention
Policy is also in place and approved by the accounting officer. The fraud risk assessment was
conducted during the period under review and quarterly monitoring conducted to ensure fraud
mitigation strategies are implemented. Fraud and Ethics awareness were conducted through
articles and a workshop held at an induction session, Fraud and Anti-Corruption awareness
forms part of the orientation programme for new employees.

Employees are constantly encouraged to report suspected incidences of fraud and corruption
through the following communication media:

Mational Anti-Corruption Hotline: 0800 701 701
Website: www.publicservicecorruptionhotline.org.za
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Unique e-mail address: intagnty@puhllcsemcemrrupﬂﬁr&mﬂm&m d '_-_.;-v- —
Postal address: PO BOX 582, Umhlanga Rocks, Kwazulu-Matal, 4320

Free Fascimile: 0800 2014 965

SMS: 39772

Alleged cases of fraud and corruption are reported anonymously through the hotline managed
by the Public Service Commission. Reported cases are in turn referred to relevant
departments or entities for further investigation.

10. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The potential conflict of interest in supply chain management process (SCM) is minimised in
the entity through the following measures:

« Members of the Bid Committees and SCM personnel are required to sign a Code of
Conduct upon appointment to serve on bid committees and at the beginning of each
financial year.

* Training and development of SCM officials where there are gaps to ensure that they keep
abreast of latest developments and best practice.

+« Bid Committee members and SCM representatives are also required to declare their
interest prior to commencement of each Bid Committee Meeting.

+ All SCM officials are required to comply with the highest ethical standards as contained in
the National Treasury's Code of Conduct for Supply Chain Management Practitioners and
sign Treasury's Code of Conduct for Supply Chain Management Practitioners. This is
crucial for the promotion of mutual trust and respect and an environment where business
can be conducted with integrity and in a fair and reasonable manner.

+ In the event where conflict of interest has been identified, the Accounting Officer or
delegated officials take reasonable steps to prevent abuse of the supply chain
management system. Any allegation of corruption, improper conduct or failure to comply
with SCM system regulations is investigated and appropriate remedial steps taken against
implicated officials and/or other role players.

« Should a SCM official or other role player, or any close family member, partner or associate
of such official or other role player, have any private or business interest in any tender to
be awarded, they are required lo disclose that interest and withdraw from participating in
any manner whatsoever in the process relating to that tender.

+ An official who becomes aware of a breach of or failure to comply with any aspect of the
supply chain management system is required to immediately report such identified breach
or failure to the Accounting Officer or delegated official in writing.

» Such reporting can also be done anonymously through appropriate mechanisms, including
the national anti-corruption hotline.

11. CODE OF CONDUCT

MISA, as a national government component established in terms of the Public Service Act,
1994 (“the PSA"), is bound by the Code of Conduct for the Public Service (“the Code”).
Accordingly, it is MISA's responsibility to bring these provisions to the attention of its
employees. To this end, a copy of the Code is provided to all MISA employees who are then

= g
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provided with the opportunity to engage same and suhsaqueﬁ\t'lfﬁmt_ L
thereof.

Furthermore, all new employees are taken through the provisions of the Code at an induction
session. According to the Code, every public servant must be faithful to the Republic of South
Adfrica ("RSA") and must honour and abide by the Constitution of the Republic. It is, therefore,
incumbent upon MISA employees to always act in the public interest in the execution of their
duties and to be guided by the laws and policies of the country. MISA employees complied
with the provisions of Code and conducted themselves ethically and professionally.

12. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Chief Executive Officer approved an Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Policy in line
with the OHS Act, 1993 (Act 85 of 1993). The Policy seeks to ensure a safe and healthy
working environment for employees so as to provide and maintain a workspace, systems and
procedures that are safe and without risk to the health of employees and free of hazards or
potential hazard to the safety or health of employees, before having to resort to personal
protective equipment. Health and Safety Representatives, Fire Marshals and First Aiders were
designated by the Chief Executive Officer and training was provided on general OHS
principles for all who were designated, as well as specific fire marshalling and first aid for fire
marshals and first aiders respectively. An OHS Committee was established and members
appointed. As of the last of the financial year under review the OHS Committee has taken over
the responsibilities of the COVID-19 Steering Committee.

The Department of Labour was requested to conduct an inspection of the workplace but has
not been able to do so due to a backlog as a result of COVID-19. The OHS Committee
conducted a site inspection as a stop measure and identified areas of concern which the
institution is in the process of addressing. The employer regularly reports progress in this
regard to the OHS Committee.

13. COMPANY /BOARD SECRETARY
The Legal Services Directorate within MISA has been assigned the responsibility for providing

secretariat support to the Advisory Board. It is projected the process of appointing members
of the board will be completed in the first quarter of 2022/23 financial year.

14. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

MISA did not undertake or fund any social responsibility activities during the financial year.
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15. REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE . s —
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The Audit Committee (" the Committee” )is pleased to present its reporl fnf_méﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁ *,_'Féa:t";nd&d 31
March 2022.

15.1 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from sections 38(1) (a) (i), 76 (4)
{d) and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA ) as well as Treasury Regulation 3.1.
Furthermore , the Committee also reports that it has adopted a formal terms of reference as its Charter and

has reviewed as well as discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

15.2 THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal Audit continues to provide assurance in terms of control , governance , and risk management as
per the approved risk-based audit plan. At the end of the financial year, the following audit engagements
were reported as complete as per the approved risk-based audit plan:

» Review the Draft Annual Performance Report (APR) for 2021/22;

» Review of Annual Financial Statements for 2021/2022;

» Review of Performance Information (Pre-determined Objectives) - Quarter 1,2, 3and 4;

« Verification of Post Audit Action Plan (PAAP) - Quarter 1, 2, 3and 4;

« Review of Protection of Personal Information Act (POPIA);

« Review of Recruitment and Selection Processes:

« Review of the Framework Contracts:

» Review of Assets Management Processes;

» Review of Filing and Records Management Processes;

» Review of Infrastructure Projects; and

+ Review of the Corporate Governance.

The Commiftee's review of the findings identified by the internal and external auditors reveals that the

internal control environment is generally adequate and effective . Risk management and governance
processes are generally adequate and partially effective, with room for improvement.

15.3 IN-YEAR MANAGEMENT AND MONTHLY/QUARTERLY REPORTS

MISA has reported quarterly to the National Treasury and the Executive Authority as is required by the
PFMA . The Committee as well as assurance providers provided management with recommendations,

which were implemented, to improve the quality of financial and non-financial information (performance
information, information communication technology, risk management, human resource management,
legal and compliance) and reporting during the year under review. The Committee was satisfied with

the content and quality of the financial and non- financial gquarterly reports submitted during tha 1;!_rnafar..
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15.4 EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Committee has reviewed:

+ The unaudited financial statements with due consideration of the independent assurance
provided by Internal Audit as well as the assurance provided by Management;

« Changes in accounting policies and practices;

« Compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

+ The basis for the going concern assumption, including any financial sustainability risks and
issues;

+ The unaudited information on predetermined objectives with due consideration of the independent
assurance provided by |A as well as the assurance provided by Management;

+ The Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) audit and management reports, with due
consideration of the responses provided by Management; and

* The audited financial statements as well as the information on predetermined objectives to be
included in the annual report for any significant adjustments resulting from the audit and reported to
the Accounting Officer.

15.5 AUDITOR-GENERAL OF SOUTH AFRICA REPORT

The Committee concurs with the conclusions of the AGSA on the annual financial statements and is of the
opinion that the audited annual financial statements may be read together with the audit report of the AGSA

15.6 CONCLUSION

The Committee wishes to commend MISA for their commitment in maintaining the * clean” audit
outcome (unqualified with no material findings) and further extends its appreciation to the Executive
Authority, Accounting Officer and Management, Internal Audit and AGSA for their tireless efforts,
commitment, and support throughout the year,

Signed on behalf of the Committee by:

?.Dala

Dr. Prittish Dala
Chairperson MISA Audit Committee
Date: 5 August 2022
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16. B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE mFM

The following table has been completed in compliance to the requirements of the BEBEE Act
of 2013 as determined by the Department of Trade and Industry.

Determining qualification criteria

for the issuing of licences,

concessions or other

authorisations in  respect of

economic activity in terms of any

law?

Developing and implementing a | Yes An SCM Policy that encapsulates

preferential procurement policy? Preferential Procurement regulations is in
place and being implemented.

Determining qualification criteria | No N/A,

for the sale of state-owned

enterprises?

Developing criteria for entering | No For the period under review no private

into partnerships with the private sector partnership were entered into by

sector? MISA.

Determining criteria for the | No The SCM Policy incorporates B-BBEE

awarding of incentives, grants aspects that seeks to incentivize suppliers

and investment schemes in in compliance with the B-BBEE Act.

support of Broad Based Black Furthermore, MISA has obtained a

Economic Empowerment? compliance report that measured the extent
of  Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment  (B-BBEE) for the
arganisation.

Pipeline backfill: compaction after relaying sewer pipeline




PART D:
HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT
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1. INTRODUCTION el

MISA's Human Resources (HR) priorities for the 2021/22 financial year included mainly the
amongst others the filling of vacancies to achieve the vacancy rate of 10% on the approved
staff establishment, improved compliance with reporting requirements of the Department of
Labour in relation to the submission of the Employment Equity Report, the implementation of
Performance Management and Development System (PMDS), implementation of the
approved Human Resource Plan, the performance of HR Capability Assessment to enhance
support to the core functions of the organisation and the compilation of a Workplace Skills
Plan (WSP) which was subsequently submitted to Local Government Sector Training Authority
(LGSETA). The compliance reports to Department of Public Service and Administration
(DPSA) were submitted by the due date.

MISA remains on course with the process of filling key positions in line with its current
organisational structure as approved by the Department of Public Service and Administration
(DPSA) in March 2017. The total number of posts on the approved staff establishment is 221
posts. A total of 192 of the posts on the organisational structure were filled by the end of the
period under review and with 29 positions remaining vacant as of the 31st of March 2022 with
the recruitment process still underway. A propartion of filled posts under the Technical Support
Services Branch, are the Professional (Engineers) which is standing at 94% (79 of 84). Under
the Senior Management Services category, 89% (32 of 36) were filled at the end of the year
under review. A total of 20% (35 of 39) management echelon filled with the appointment of the
Deputy Director-General (DDG) for Technical Support Services (TSS) Programme.

Employee performance and rewards within the entity were managed in accordance with the
Performance Management Development System (PMDS) applicable to the public service. The
Entity achieved 100% regarding timeous submission of the Performance Agreements for
2021/22 and finalisation of 2020/21 Performance Assessments, respectively. During the year
under review, the HRM&D unit continued with management of the COVID-19 through the
monitoring and implementation Protocol Guidelines on the management of COVID-19 in the
workplace, ensuring that all regulations, directives, and circulars are adhered to and reporting
to the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA).

The implementation of the Employee Health and Wellness programme remains one of the
priorities for HRM&D to ensure that MISA's working environment is conducive for productive
performance of its staff. The process to procure the service provider for services of employee
health and wellness for employees to promote organisational effectiveness whilst maintaining
work life balance is under way. Key Human Resources policies in line with the legislative
frameworks applicable are in place and implemented accordingly with six of these policies
reviewed during the financial year under review.

Key achievements by the public agency for the year under review includes the appointment of
the Deputy Director-General: Technical Support Services; the reduction of vacancy rate by 10
percentage points to 13% as at the end of the year in comparisen to the end of the previous
reporting period where vacancy rate was at 23%; the proportion of women appaointed at Senior
Management Services (SMS) level increased to 49% and staff turnover particularly for the
Technical Support professionals has been effectively managed with a retention rate standing
at 94% (79 Of 84) filed at the end of the year under review. The Talent Management and
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Retention Strategy were developed and their implementation ha& assisted.in:
turnover.

A key focus of HRM & D in the new financial year will be improvement of leave management
through continuous engagements with management on ways to better manage leave among
their respective staff. Efforts towards achievement of the 2% mandatory target for
appointment of people with disability and 50% of women at Senior Management Service
(SMS)will be continued. The recruitment process will also continue with the aim of reducing
vacancies to within the 10% threshold,

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

Personnel Cost by Programme

Total Expenditure Personnel No. of

Programme/

Personnel exp. Average

activity/objective

for the entity
(R'000)

Expenditure

as a % of total

employees

(R'D0D)

exp. (R'000)

personnel cost
per employee

(R'000)

Administration 02 226 44 147 48% 76 581
Technical Support 239,160 120,893 50% 328 368
Services

IDMS 117,708 13,569 11% 14 969
Total 449,093 178,609 39% 418 427

Motes: ADMIN + 12 interns, TS5 + YGs /Exp Leamers! Apprentices 211, IDMS + MIPMIS 3 contracts

Personnel cost by Salary Band

No. aof
employees

Personne|
Expenditura

% of personnel
exp. o lotal
personnel cost
(R'O0O)

Average parsonnel
cosl per employes

{R'000) (R'000)

Top Management 5.363 3% 1.788
Senior Management 40,117 23% 32 1,254
Professional qualified 106,115 59% 107 891
Skilled 3"859 g% 20 1 93
Semi-skilled 8.589 5% 28 296
Unskilled 315 0% 1 315
Temporary employees 14,251 8% 226 63
TOTAL 178,609 100% 418 427

Performance Rewards

Programme/activity/objective Performanca Persunnel Expendilure % of parformanca

rewards (R'00D) rewards o tolal
personnel cost (R'000)

Top Management - 5,363 0.00%

Senior Management 232 40,117 0.58%

Professional gualified 334 105,634 0.32%

Skilled 188 3,859 4.86%

Semi-skilled g7 8 589 1.13%

Unskilled g 315 2.80%

Total B59 163,877 0.52%

B9
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Programmel/lactivity/objective Persannel Training Training Mo. of Avg training
Expenditure ~ Expenditure  Expendilure  employees oosl per
(R'O00Y (R'00D) as a % of trained employee
Personne!
Cost
Administration 44 147 212 0.48% 79 268
Technical Support Services 120,893 400 0.33% 106 3.78
IDMS 13,569 101 0.74% 12 8.39
Total 178,609 713 0.40% 197 3.62
Employment and Vacancies
Programme/activity/objective 202002021 2021/2022 2021/2022  2021/2022 % of
Ma. of Approved No. of Vacancies vacancies
Emplovees Posts Emplovees
Office of the CEQ 19 20 18 2 10%
Technical Support Services 98 134 117 17 13%
IDMS 9 15 11 L 27 %
Corporate Management Services 19 23 21 2 0%
Financial Management Services 28 29 25 4 14%
Total 171 221 192 29 13%
Programme/activity/objective 2020/2021 202172022 2021/2022  2021/2022 % of
Mo, of Approved MNo. of Vacancies vacancies
Employess Fosls Employees
Top Management 2 3 3 ] 0%
Senior Management 32 36 3z 4 1%
Professional gualified g2 115 107 8 7%
Skilled 20 24 20 4 17%
Semi-skilled 24 42 29 13 31%
Unskilled 1 1 1 0 0%
Total 171 221 192 29 13%

During the period under review, MISA continued with the process of filling positions that have
become vacant in line with the approved revised structure of March 2017. The vacancy rate
further reduced to 13% as of 31 March 2022. The vacancy rate at SMS level reduced to 10%
at the same period with 80% (35 of 39) management echelon filled as the result of the
appointment of the Deputy Director-General (DDG) for Technical Support Services (TSS)

Programme.
Employment Changes

Salary Band Employmentat  Appointments Terminations Employment at

beginning of end of the period
period

Top Management 2 1 0 3
Senior Management 3z 2 1 33
Professional qualified 92 18 3 107

Skilled 20 2 3 19
Semi-skilled 24 7 2 29
Unskilled 1 0 1] 1

Total 171 30 9 182
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Reasan Numbar % of total no. of staff leaving '

Death 1 11%
Resignation B BO%
Dismissal 0 0%
Retirement 0 0%

Il health 0 0%
Expiry of contract o 0%
Other 0 0%

Total 9 100%

The staff turnover as reported above was mainly due resignations as the reason for staff
attrition at MISA, particularly for the Technical Professionals (Engineers). The approved
Talent Management and Retention Policy and Strategy are tools available to assist with the
retention intervention processes within MISA in the new financial year.

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary Action Number

Verbal Waming 0
Written Warning 0
Final Written warning a
Dismissal 8]
Total 0

MNo disciplinary or misconduct case were recorded under the period of review.

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status

Levels
MALE
African Coloured Indlan White
Current  Target | Current  Target  Current  Tamet  Current Target

Top Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 15 16 1 1 o 0 0 0
Professional qualified 55 60 3 2 5 2 [ 3
Skilled 10 12 0 4] 1] 0 0 1]
Semi-skilled g 12 0 1 1] 0 0 0
Unskilled 1 4] 0 i) 8] 0 0 0
TOTAL 82 100 4 4 5 2 1] 3

Levels
FEMALE
African Coloured Indian White
Currert  Targel Current Targel  Current Target Current Targst

Top Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 16 18 o 1 0 0 0 0
Professional qualified 34 40 3 3 ] 4 1 3
Skilled 10 13 0 0] 1] 0 0 0
Semi-skilled 20 28 8] 2 1] 0 0 0
Unskilled 0 0 0 1] 1] 0 0 0
TOTAL B1 99 3 6 0 4 1 3




R ——— |

Munictpal Infrastruciura Suppot Agent
Annusl Report 202102002

Disabled Staff

Male Female
Current Targel Current Target

Top Management ] 0 4] 4]
Senior Management 0 1] 1 0
Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 2 ] 0
Semi-skilled ] o 1 1]
Unskilled 0 o i} 0
Temporary employees 0 0 1] 0
TOTAL 0 2 2 0

MISA is striving to achieve the gender equity target of at least 50% women at Senior
Management echelon and the filling of 2% of the total posts with persons with disabilities as
prescribed in the Employment Equity Act. In the period under review, MISA has achieved
49% target on gender equity for women appointed at SMS level, with seventeen (17) of 35
SMS positions on the approved structure occupied by women. A 1% target for persons with
disabilities achieved remained unchanged during the period under review. MISA continues
with efforts towards achievement of the 2% mandatory target for appointment of people with
disability and 50% of women at Senior Management Service (SMS)will be continued. The
recruitment process will also continue with the aim of reducing vacancies to within the 10%
threshold. Overall reduction by 10% vacancy rate have been achieved from the previous year
at 23% (171 of 221) versus the current year under review which is 13% (192 of 221).
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Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on Municipa ructure

Support Agent

[ Report on the audit of the financial statements |

Opinion

1. | have audited the financial statements of the Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent set out
on pages 105 to 136 which comprise the staterment of financial position as at 31 March 2022,
the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow
statement and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then
ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent as at 31 March 2022, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Standards of

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of
the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1888 (PFMA).

Basis for opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

4. | am independent of the government component in accordance with the Intemational Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' International code of ethics for professional accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical
requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

5. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of the accounting officier for the financial statements

6. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the Standards of GRAP and the requirements of
the PFMA, and for such intermal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whaether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
government component’s abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
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matters relating to going concern and using the going. concern basis of accounting
the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquida

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. e

Auditor-general's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report thet includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
included in the annexure to this auditor's report.

"F-lapc-rl on the audit of the annual performance report

introduction and scope

10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in

11.

terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selacted
programme presented in the annual performance report. | performed procedures to identify
material findings but nol to gather evidence to express assurance.

My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information, which must be based on the government component’s approved performance
planning documents, | have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the
performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine
whether the actions taken by the government component enabled service delivery. My
procedures do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to the extent of
achievements in the current year or planned performance strategies and information In
respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

12. | evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reporied performance information in

accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programme
presented in the government component’s annual performance report for the year ended
31 March 2022:
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Programme 2 - Technical support services 38 - 48

13. | performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved
performance planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether the
indicators and related largets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of
the reported performance Information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and
complete.

14. | did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for this programme:

Programme 2 - Technical support services

Other matter
15. | draw attention lo the matter below.
Achievement of planned targets
16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 3ato 48 for Information on the

achievement of planned targets for the year and management's explanations provided for
the under/over achievement of targets.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

17. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibility to report material findings on the government component’s compliance with
specific matters in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to
gather evidence to express assurance.

18. | did not identify any material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key
legislation set out in the general notice issued In terms of the PAA.

Other information

19. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not
include the financial statements, the auditor's report and the selected programme

presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this
auditor's report
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20. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on'the
Information and compliance with legislation do not cover the Gther.infermation anc
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it,

21. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements and the selected programme presented in the annual performance report, or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

22. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement in
this other information, | am required to report that fact.

23. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Internal control deficiencies

24. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. | did not identify any significant
deficiencies in internal control.

a&UDRITOo F S EME= AL
SOoOUTH AFRICA

Auditing to build public confidence
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As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional sceplicism throughoul my audit of the financial statements and the
procedures performed on reported performance information for the selected programme and
on the government component's compliance with respect to the selecled subject matters.

Financial statements

2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this
auditor's report, | also:

= jdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of Iinternal control

= obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the government component's internal control

= evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officar

« conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer's use of the going concemn basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Municipal Infrastructure
Support Agent to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the
information available to me at the date of this auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause a government component to cease operating as a going concarn

= evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
Including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Communication with those charged with governance

3.

| communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent {MISA

Annual Financizl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

General Information

Nature of business and principal activities MISA 15 a dedicated and coordinated technical capacity programme fo
suppart municipalites in accelarating the service delivery as well as
the sustainable operations and management of municipal
infrasiruciurs,

Registered office Letaba House
Riverside Office Park
1303 Heuwel Road
Centurian
0o4E

Postal address Private Bag X105
Canturian
0046

Controlling entity The Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent (MISA) is a Government
Componant within tha Mimsiry for Cooperative Governance(DCoG),
established in terms of Presidential Proclamation No. 28 of 2012, It is
a Schedule 3 enfity requiated in terms of the Public Service Act, of
1984, as amended, Its principal mandate is to provide technical
support to and assist municipalities 0 strengthen their internal
capacity for delivery and maintenance of basic service infrastructure,

Bankers Standard Bank South Africa
Auditors Auditar-General South Africa
Secretary Mone
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Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent {MISA

Annual Financizl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
Index

The reports and statements set out below comprisa the annual financial statements presented to parfiament:

Index Page
Accounting Officar's Respansibifities and Appraval 02
Accounting Officer's Repont 103-104
Statement of Financial Pasition 105
Statemant of Financial Perfemarnce 106
Statement of Changes in Met Assels o7
Cash Flow Statemant 108
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 109
Accaunting Policies e
Notes fo the Annual Financial Statements 1256
Abbreviations

Do Department of Cooperatve Govemance

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

MsA Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent

ioe Intergrated Development Plans

MIFMIS Municipal Infrastructure Perfomance Management Information System
PFR&A, Public Finance Managemen! Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1998)
LGSETA Local Government Seclor Education and Training Authority

WT Mational Treasury

DPSA Deparment of Public Service and Administration

ASB Accounting Standards Board

CovID-18 Corana Virus Disease 2018
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Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent {MISA

Annual Financizl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The Accounting Officer is required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1858 as amended by Act 29 of 1559) to
maintain adequate accounting recards and s responsible for the contant and imtegnty of the annual financial staterments and
related finanzial information included in this report, I is the responsibilty of the Accounting Officer to ansure that the annual
financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of MISA as at the reporiing period &nd the results of its operations and
cash flows for the period then ended in conformity with GRAP standards and in & manner required by the FFMA. The exiernal
auditors are engaged Lo express an independent opinlon on the annual financial statements and was given unrestricted access
1o all inancial records and related data.

The annual financial stalemants have been prepared in accordance with the standards of GRAP, including any interpretations,
guidslines and directives ssusd by the ASB,

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accouniing policies. conssstently applied and supporied by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Accaunting Officer acknowledges thal he s ultimatealy responaible for the system of internal linancial contrel astablished by
the entty and place considerable impartance an maintaining a strong control envirenment. To enable the Accounting Officer 1o
meet these responsibilities, the Accounting Officer sets standards for intermal control amed at reducing the risk of ermor or
deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of respansibilites within a clearly defined
framawork, effective accounting procadures and adequate seqgregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of sk Thess
controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employess are reqguired to maintain the hlghest ethical standards in
ensunng that the entity’s business is conducted in 8 mannar fhat in all ressonable croumstances is above reproach. The focus
of risk mansgemant in the entity is on identifying. assessing, managing and mentoring all known farms of risk across the entity,
While cperational nsk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise t by ensunng that approprste
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints:

The Accounting Officer is of the opinion, based on the assurance provided to him, information and explanations given by
management, that the system of internal contrel provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on far
the preparation of the annual fingncial statements, However, any system of intemal financial control can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute assurance againgl materal misstatemnent or deficit.

The Accounting Officer has reviewad the entity's cash flow forecast far the perod to 37 March 2023 and, in light of this review
and the current financial position, he is sabsfied that the entity will have access to adequale resources to continue in
operational existence for the foresasable fulire,

The annual financial statemenis are prepared on the basis that the enfity is a going concern provided that Matonal Treasury
continues to fund the entity and approves the retention of surplus funds. The entity has neither the intention nor the need to
Hguldate ar curtall materially the scale of the entity.

The extermal auditors are rasponsible far independently reviewing and reporhing on the entity's annual financial statements.

The Annual financial statements set out on pages '3 19 13¥yhich have been prepared for the entity on the going concern basis,
were approved and signed by the Accounting Officer on 31 July 2022

b

Mr G.N Vimba
Accounting Officer
MISA

Date: 30/07/22
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Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent {MISA)\J
Annual Financizl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting Officer's Report

The Accounting Officer submits his report for the year ended 31 March 2022.
1. Incorporation

The Municipal Infrasfructure Support Agent (MISA)} 5 8 Govemnmant Component within the Ministry for Cooperative
Governance and Traditional Affairs (CoGTA), esteblished in terms of Presidential Proclamation Mo 28 of 2012 It is & scheduls
3 entity regulated in terms of the Public Service Act, of 1994 az amended. Its principal mandate ia to provide technical support
o municipalitiez and assist them to strengthen their internal capacity for delivery and maintenance of basic service
infrastruciure,

MISA was afficially proclaimed as a government comporent on 11 May 2012,
Establishment of MISA

In 2011, DCoG announced that it was in the final stages of setling up 2 Special Purpoze Vehicle, w0 be called Municipal
Infrastructure Suppart Agent (MISA), which will support mainly low and medium capacily municipalities with infrastructure
delivery by

11 Supparting municipalties o conduct effective infrastruciure planning fo achieve sustsinable service delvery

1.2 Supporting and assisting municipalities with the implementation of Infrastructure projects as determined by the
municipal integrated development plans(IDPs)

1.3 Supporting and assisting municipalites with the operation and maintenance of monicipal infrastruciure,

1.4 Building the capacity of municipalities o undertake effective planning, delivery, operations and management of
municipal infrastructure, and

1.8 Any function that may be deemed ancillary to those hsted in the subparagraph above.

On establishment, the funding for MISA was ring fenced within the vote of the Department of Coorperate Governance. Al the
time, the Special Purpoge Vehicle was operafing as a sub-programme within the Departmant of Cooperative Governance
Programme B Infrastrudture and Ecanomic Development,

As a goverment component, MISA is expected to operate in @ccordance with gl the relevant legisiation, regulations and
palicies of the Public Service. These include but ara nat limitzed to:

. Public Finance Management Act, 1839 (Act No. 29 of 1893, as amended} and Treasury Requlations. and
. Public Service Act, 1954 (promulgated under proclamation Mo, 103 of 1994) and Public Service Regulations (2001)

The Head of MISA s the Accauntmg Officar of the inattution in terms of section 36 {2) (b) of the PFMA,

Paragraph 40(1)(b) af fhe PFMA stipulates that the Accounting Officer must prepare financial statemants for each financial year
m accordance with generally recognized accounfing praciice.

2. Review of activities
Main business and operations

MISA is 3 dedicated govemment component under Cogia established to support municipalities in accslerating  ssrvice
delivery a3 well 85 the sustaineble operations and maintenance of municipal infrastructure,

This is the nineth year of reporting as a separate entity.

Net surplus for the financlal year under review

Met surplus of the entity for the period under review is R71 984 865,

3. Going concemn

The annual financial siatemenis have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to 8 going concern. This
bagis prasumes that funds will be available to finance future cperations and that the realisation of assets and setllemeant of
liabilines, cantingant obligatians and commitments will cocur in the ardinary course of business.

The ability of the entity fo continue as a going concern s dependent an & number of faciors. The most significant af these (s
that the Nationzl Treasury through DCoG will continue funding the ongoing operations of the anfity and approves the retention

of surplus funds. MISA intends to implemant cost containment measures to mitigate any nsks associated with the entity's going
concern fisk o honor ils abligalions.
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Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent {Mlsﬂ

Annual Financizl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting Officer's Report

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a
gaing cencem for at least the next twelve manths,

In light of the curent COVID-19 pandemic, protecting the health and well-being of our stalf, clients and other key stakehalders
is af the centre of our response plans. We have activated business continuity plans to ensure continued performance of
essential functons even under stressed conditions and identified appropriate mitigating initiatives to address the challenges
baing faced. As the situation s stll evolving the aexpected fuline impact an communities and business activites is difficull to
guartify and will be considared and included in the strategic plan.

The shove would nat impact MISA's ability to pay ifs debts as they become dus or creale any uncertainty with ragards to
MiSA's abilty to continue 25 & going concern, Other than those mentioned above there are na ofher material facis or
circumstancas which occurred between the end of the reporting perod and the date when the financial statements are
autharised for issue that would reguire adjustment or disclosure in the financial statemeants.

4, Accounting policies

The annual financial stetements have been prepared in accordence with the prescribed Statements of GRAP, issued by the
Accounting Standards Board as prescribed by the framework from National Treasury

5. Accounting Officer
The Accounting Officer of the entity during the current year and at the date of this report is as follows

Nama Matiomality
Mr G.N Vimba (Accounting Officer) Sauth African
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2022

2022 2021
Notes R R
Assets
Current Assels
Prepayments 3 1,711,384 1,789,476
Receivabies from non-exchange fransactions 4 274,843 308,588
Cash end cash equivalents & 331,264,723 2150961475
333,850,060 218,055 035
Non-Current Assets
Froperty, plant and equipment 6 10,262 BEB 8,131,393
Intangible assets 7 11,236,075 14,684 880
21518083 22816273
Taotal Assats 355 369,023 240878 212
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating Lease Liability 8 60,243 345 507
Payables from exchange fransactions g 76673871 32,756 531
Provigions 10 14,872,036 15,506,366
891607 150 49,088 404
Taotal Liabilities 91,607,150 49,083 404
MNet Asseals 263,762,773 191,777,608
Accumulated surplus 283762773 191,777 808
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Statement of Financial Performance
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2022 2021

Notes R R
REVENUE
Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Interast received 1 8,685,628 3,777,540
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
Transher revenue
Government grants (DGoG) 12 G258 864,000 389,745,000
LGSETA Funding 12 700,829 2.411,180
Total revenue frem non-exchange transactions 629,564 628 392160,160
TOTAL REVENUE 635,250,258 395937 708
Expenditure
Employes related costs 13 (178,608, 785) (172,680,050)
Depreciation and amorisation 14 15,103,086) (5, 130,247)
Finance costs 15 - {525,852
Funds Surrendered to DCoG 18 (117,172,058 -
Caonlracted sarvices 17 (220,582 758) (54.648,302)
Genersl Expenses 14 (44,798 525) {32, 145,024)
TOTAL EXPENDITURE (566,265,293) {265,127 495)
Surplus for the year 71,884,065 130,810,214
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Accumulated  Total net

surplus assels
R R

Balance at 01 April 2020 60,867,504 60,967 594
Changes in net assals

Surplus for the vear 130,810,214 130810214
Tatal changes 130,810,214 130,810,214
Balance at 01 April 2021 181,777,808 191,777,808
Changss in net asssts

Surpius for the year 71,884,965 71,984 965
Tatal changes 71,884,965 71,884 965
Balance at 31 March 2022 263,762,773 263762773
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Cash Flow Statement

2022 2021
Notes R R
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Granis 628 564 000  389,749.000
Interest income 8,685,629 ATTT 549
LGSETA Funding - 2411 180
G37.549.629 395937 709
Payments
Employee cosis (179,711,117} (167,974 125}
Goods dnd Services 221 413.660) (109,176 650)
Funds Surrendered to DCoG (117.172.055) -
(518,296 836) (277,150.775}
Met cash flows from operaling actvities 18 119,252,793 118,786,934
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of praperty plant and eguipmeant <] (3949.545] (1,051 .036)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 115,303 248 117,735,808
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 215.961.475 98,225 577
Cash and cash aguivalents al the and of the year b 331,264,723 215961 475
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved  Adjustments Final Budget Actual Difference Reference
budget amounts on  between final
comparable  budget and
basis actual
R R R R R

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange

transactions

Inlerest receved - Call Account - - = B 685629 3,685,629 MNote 28
Revenue from non-exchange

transactions

Taxation revenus

LGSETA Funding - - = 700,629 FO0,G629 Note 28
Revenue

Government grante & subsidies 344 884,000 - 344,854,000 344 864000 -  Note 28
Innovative Solid Wasle 284, 000,000 - 284,000,000 284000000 = Note 28
Taotal revanue from non- BZ8.B64,000 - B28.864000 B29 564629 TOoD6249

exchange fransachons

Total revenue 628,864,000 - G2BBE4000 638250258 8,388,258
Expenditure

Employse related costs {210,000,000) - (210,000,000) (178,608,785) 31391215  Note 28
Depreciation and amortisation {5,105,000) - (5105000} 5103,0886) 1534 Mole 28
Contracted Services {368, 250, 0040) - (368,950000) (220582 758) 148,376,242 Mote 28
Funds Surrendared to DCoG - - - (117472058 (M7172059)  Mote 28
General Expenses 144,800,000} - {44,800,000) (44 788,625 1375 Note 28
Total expenditure {626,564,000) - (B2B8,B54.000) (566,265,293) 62598707

Actual Amount on Comparable - . - 71,084,985 71,284 965

Bagis as Presented in the

Budget and Actual Comparative
Staterment
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Accounting Policies

1.  Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
FPractice (GRAF), ssusd by the Accounting Standards Board 0 accordance with Section 40{1}4b) of the Public Finance
Manzgement Act (Act 1 of 1098 as smendad by Act 29 of 1909,

These annual financial statements have been prapared on an accrual basie of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless spacified otherwize. The financial stalements are presentad in South
African Rand, which s the functional currancy of the enfity,

The preparation af annual financial statemanis in conformity with GRAP requires management to make judgements, estimates
and azsumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and labilities, income and expensses,
These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experence and vanous other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the cirmumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
azsets and labiltios that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ fram these astimates.

1.1 Going concern assumption

The annual financial statements have besn prepared on the besis of accounting policies applicable to a going concem, This
bagis presumes that funds will be available to finance future cperations and that the realisation of assels and setfiement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur (n the ordinary course of business

The ability of the entity to continue 25 a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is
that the National Treasury through DCoG will continue funding the ongoing operations of the entity. MISA will continua itz
operations for the forseeable fulure,

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required o make estimates and assumplions that affect the
amourts represented in the annual financial statements and relalsd disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimatas, Actual results in the future could differ from thess estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

The estimates and undarlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis. Revisionz to accounting sstimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects that penod, or in the period of the revision and
future penods if the revision affects both current and future periods,,

Useful lives of Property , plant and equipment

MISA's management delermines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for Property | plant and
equipment. This estimate is bazed on time pencd they expect (o use the assets. Management also consider's the time period
similar assots are Used for by antitias of a similar nature,

Finance Cost

Finance cost comprises the following:
- Interest expense on overdue accounts from service providers.

all finance costs ara recognised in surplus or deficit using the affective intenest method.
Frustless and wastelul axpenditure refers to expendiiure that was made In vain and could have bean avorded had reasonable
care been teken. Such expenditura includes, inter alia, interest.

Intangible assets

To deteming the: useful life of assets managemsant considered for what time period they expect to use the assets. Management
considared the impact of technology and the service requiremeants of the entity to determine the aptimum useful life expactation
af the assals for internally genzrated intangible assets. Management determine the useful lfe by considering the software
platform | software laungage and software source code. Management also considsred information relating to the useful ife
provided by the software developer,
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1.3 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recordad in the notes to the financial statements whan thera is a possible abligation that arisas from
past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrencs or non-ocourrence of one or mare uncertain future
events not within the controd of the governmeant component or when thers is a present obligation that is not recognisad because
it is not probabkle that an outflow of rescurcas will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
maasired rafiably |

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible nor-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods ar
services, rental fo others, or for administrative purposes, and are expectad to be used during more than one period,

The cost of an itemn of propery, plant and equipment is recognised as an assel when:

# it ks probable (hat future econcmic benelits or service potential associated with the (e wall flew 1o the entity, and

. the cost of the lem can be measured reliably,
Propeny, plent and equipment is initially measured at cost,
VWhere an asset is acquired through a non-exchange fransaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acouisition.
Whera an item of property, plant and equipmen is acquired in axchange for & non-monelary asset or monetary assels, or a
combination of monetary and non-monatary assets, the assel acgulred (s initally measured at fair value (the cost). if the
acquirad tem's fair value was not determinable. its desmead cost is the carrying amount of the assst(s) given up.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acguire or construct an item of propery, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. f 8 replacement cost s recognised in the camying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the camying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accurmutated depreciation and any impaiment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depraciated on the straight line baszis over their expected useful lives 1o their estimated
residual value.

An item of property, plant-and equipment is derecognised;
. on disposal and or
«  when no future sconomic banefils or sarvice potential expected from use ar gisposal

The gam gr |loss from the derecagnition of an dem of propary, plant and eguipment 15 included in surplus or deficit whan the
item is derecognised.

The useful lives of properly, plant and equipment been assessed as follows:

ltem Depreciation method Average useful life
Furniturs and iures Straight | 5-15 years

Motor vehicles Siralght line 8-10 years

Office equipment Siraight e 5-15 years
Computer eguipment Siraight line 5-8 years

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there 12 any indication that the entity expectations about the residual value
and the useful life of an assel have changed since the preceding reporing date. T any such indicalion exiats, the antity revises
the expected useful Iile andior residual value accordingly. Il expeciations differ from previous estimates, he change s
accounted for as & change In an accounting estimate in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policias,
Changes in Accounting Estimeies and Errors.

1.6 Intangible assets

An intangible asset & recognised whean:
- it Iz probabla that the expected fulure economic baneafils or service potential that are altnbulable to the asset will
flow to tha enfity, and
* the cost or fair valug of the asset can be measured reliably
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1.6 Intangible assets (continued)
Intangibie assets acoulred are measdred on initial recagnition at cost

Subssquent 1o initial recagnition, intemally-genasrated intangible assets are reporfed at cost l2ss accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impaimment losses, on the same basis as intengible assets acquired seperately

An intangible assel is regarded as having an indefinite useful Iife when, based on all relevant factors, thene is no foreseeable
firrit to the period over which the asset s expecled to generale pel cash inflows or service potential, Amomsation BB pot
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there s an indicatien that the
asset may be impaired, For alf other intangible essets amorfisation is provided on & siraight ling basis over their useful lifs.

The amartisation percd and the amortisation mathod for intangible assels are reviewed at each reporting date,

Reasszessing the useful ife of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as ingefinite iz an indicator that
the assel may ba impaired, As a resull the asset iz tested for impairmant and the remaining carrying amaouni is amortised cwver
fls usaful lita,

Amartisation is provided fo write down the intangible assets, on & straight ling basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Amortisation method Average useful life
Computer softwars, other Straight [ine 5-10 years
Computer software, intermally generated Siraight ling 10 years

The entity discloses relevant information relating to assels under consiruction or development, In the notes to the financial
statemenis (sea note ).

Intangible assels are derecognised!
+  ondispogal, or
. whean na future aconomic benefils or sanice potential are expacted from its use or disposal,

The gain or loss s the difference betwsen the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the camying amaount. It is recognised in
surplus or deficit when the asset s derecognised

1.6 Leases

& lease 15 classified as a finance lease if it translars substantally all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership, A lease s
clzgsified a5 an operating l=ase if it doas not ransfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 1o awnership,

When a lease includes both iznd and buildings slements. the entity assesses the classification of each element separately,
Operating leases - lesses

Operating leaze payments are recognisad as an expenze on a siralght-line basis over the leasa larm, The difference betweesn
the amounts recognized as an expense and the contractual payments ane recognisad as an operating lease assal or labiity,

1.7 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generaling assets are those assats held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial retum
When an assel is deployad in a manner consistent with that adoptad by a profit-orientated antity, it genarates a commercial
retum.

Mon-cash-gsnarating assets are assats othar than cash-generafing assets,

The recoverablze srmourt used for the impairment is the higher of fair value less costs {o gell and the valuz in use.
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1.7 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)
Identification
VWhen the carrying amount of 8 non-cash-genarating asset excaads its recovarable service amount, it is impaired,

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that & non-cash-generating assat may be impaired,
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable 2ervice amournt of the asset

Irrespective of whether there s any indication of impairmant, the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangible assat with an
indefinite useful life or a non-cash-ganarating intangible asset not yet availabla for use for impairment annually by comparing its
camying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is perfarmed at the same fime svery year, If an
intangible ssset was inifially recognisad dunng the current reporting period, that intangiblie asset was tested for impairment
before the end of the curment reporiing period.

Value in use
Walue in use of non-cash-generating assets is the prasent value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining sarvice potential

The present value of the remaining service potential of & non-cash-generating assets 15 determined using the following
approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service patential of a non-cash-generating assel is determined as the depreciated
replacameant cost of the asset. The replacament cost of an assetis the cost fo replace the asset's gross sérvice potenfal This
cosh is depreciated to reflect the @sset in its used condition, An asset may be replaced edher through reproduction (replication)
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as
the cumrent reproduction or reglacement cost of the assel, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the
basis of such cost, 1o reflact the already consumed or expired servica patential of the asset.

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amaunt of 8 non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrving amount, the camying amount of the
assel is reduced o its recoverable service amount This reduction is an imgaiment loss

An smpairment loss is recognised immaediately in surplus or deficit.
Aftar the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation {amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset s
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised camying amount, 1255 its residual value (if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining ussful life
1.8 Employee benefits
Employee benafits are all forms of consideration given by an entily in exchange for service renderad by employees.
Termnation benafits are employes benefits payaole as a result of either,

*  anentity's decision to terminate an employes's employment before the normal retirement date; or

. an employee's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employes benefits are employes benefits (other than post-employmeant benefils and terminaton benafits) that
are not due 1o be seftled within twelve months after the and of the period in which the amployees render the related servics,

Yested eamployes benefits are employes benefits that are not conditional on future employment,

A constructive obligation 18 2n obligation that denves from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufficiently specific cument statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilites and as a resull., the entity has created a valid expactalion on the parl of those other parties that it will discharge
thosa responsibilities.
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1.8 Employea benefits (continuad)
Shaort-term employee benefits

Shart-farm employes benefits are amployes banafits (other than fermination bensfits) that are due to be sstied within twehe
months after the end of the pericd in which the employess render the related service

Ehurl-tarm employea benefits include items such as

wages, salaries and social security contnbutions.

= short-erm campensaled absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the
ghsences is due to be sattied within twelve manths after the end of fhe reporting period in which the employess
render the related employes service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
penod inwhich the employeas render the related sarvice, and

# nafi-manetary banafits (for example, madical care, and free or subsidisad goods of senvices such as housing, cars
and celiphones) for current employess,

When an employee has rendered senvice to the enfity duning & reporting pericd, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of shari-term employee benefils expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

- as - a liability {accruad expense), after deducting any amoun! already paid. If tha amount already paid axceeds the
undiscounted amaount of the benefits, the entity recognise thal excess as an asset (prepaid expense) fo the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a mduction in future payments ar a cash refund, and

* a5 an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related paymenis when the entity has a present
legai or constructive obligation to make such paymenis-as a result of past events and a reliable astisate of the obligation can
be made, A prasent obligation exists when the entity has ne reahshic allernative bul to make the paymeants.

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contibution plans ere post-employment bensfit plans under which &n entity pays fixed contributions info & separate
entity (& fund} and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
aszels (o pay all employes banaflits relating to employes senvice in the curent and prior penods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the caniribution payable to
a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:
* @5 a liahility (sccrued expense), efter deducting any contribution zlready pad, If the confribution already pa:d
exceads the contribution dus for service before the reporting date. an entity recognize that excess as an asset
(prepaid expansa) to the extant that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments ar a
cash refund,; and
* 35 an expense, unless another Standard requires ar permits the molusion of tha contribution in the cost of an asset.

1.8 Provisions

Provisions are recogrised whean:
+  the entity has a present obligation as a result of & past event;
+ |t is probable that an outflow of rescurcas embadying econamic benefils or servioa patential will be raquirad to
settle the obligation, and
. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provigion is the best estimate of the expenditure expecied to be required to settie the present cbligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of ime value of maney Is material, the amount of a proavision is the present value of the expenditures
expactsd to be requirsd to settle the obligation,

The dizcount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Whera some ar all of he expendilure required 1o selils a provision & expected 10 be reimbursed by another parly, the
reimbursement i recogrised whean, and anly when, I is wirlually cadain thal reimborsemeant wil be recaived i the enfity setllas
the obligation, The reimbursemant is treated a5 & separale asset The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not
excesd the amount of the provision,
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1.9 Provisions [continued)

Provisions ara raviewed at gach raparting date and adjusted o reflact the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed If it s

no lenger probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits ar service potential will be required, to setile the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amountl of a provision incresses in each period to reflect the passage of ime. This
increase 1= recognised as an interest expense.

& provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recogrised,
FProvisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit)

If an entity has a confract that i3 onerous, the present obligation {net of recovenes) under the contract 15 recognisad and
MeasUred a8 & provision.

& consfructive obligation to restructura arises only when an entity:

*  has a detalled formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the aclivityfoperating unit or part of & activity/operating unit concemed,
- the principal locaticns affected;
- the location, function, and appreximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated,
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- whan the plan will be implemaniad, and

* s raised 8 valid expectation in thase affected that it will camy out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features o thoze affected by it. Previoosly MISA had a congtructive obligation
lowards payment of keave gratuily to individual technical consultants. MISA has since phased out the use of
Imdividual tachrical consultants.

1.10 Commitments

Iterms are classified a5 commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will nammally result in the
outflow of cash,

Disclosures are required in respedt of unrecognised contraciual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure 15 necessary o achieve a fair presentalion should be disclosed ina note ta the financial
statemeanis, i both the following crtera are met;
. Contracis should be non-canceliable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example. contracts for computer or
building maintenance services), and
. Contracis should relate to something ofher than the roubine, steady, state business of the entity — therefore salary
commitments relating ta employment contracts or socral sacunty benelit commiments ara excluded,

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service petential during the reporting period when those inflows resull in an
increase in nel aszats, othar than increases relaling to contributions from owners.

An exchanga transaction is one in which the organ of state receives assets or services, or has lablites extinguished, and
direclly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use ol assels) fo the other party in
exchange,

Fair value iz the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s kangth transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured af the fair value of the consideration received or recsvable, net of frade discounts and volume rebates,
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1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Rendering of services

When the aulcoma of 8 fransaction invalving the rendening of services can be estimated refiably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recegnissd by reference to the stags of completion of the transaction &t fhe reporing date, The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the foliowsng conditions are satisfied:

+  lhe amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

+ |t b= prabable that the economic benefits or sarvice potential assocated with the transachon will fiew o the entity;

+  the stage of completion of the fransaction at the reporting date can be measured raliably. and

. the cosiz incurred for the fransaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured raliably,

When =ervicaes arg performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line bazis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other mathod better represents the stage of
completion. When a specific act is much mena significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executad

When the cutcome of the transaction involving the rendering of servicas cannot be estimated refigbly, revenue 15 recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue s recognised by reference to the stage of completon of the fransaction at the reporting date, Stage of
completion is determined by services perfarmed to dale as a parcantage of total services 1o be parformed,

Interest

Interast is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method and is recognised on a time proportion
bazis.

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Reverue comprses gross inflows of sconomic benefits or service potential received and recelvable by an entity, which
represents an incresse in net assets, ofher than increases relating to contributions from owners,

Conditicns on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the assel s reguired to be consumed by the recipient as specified or fulure economic benefits or service potential musl be
returned 1o the transfaror,

Mon-axchange transactions are transactions that are nol exchange transactions, In a non-exchange ransactian, an anfity sither
receives valug from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives valus to another
entity without directly receiving epproximately equal valug in exchangs.

Restrictions on transfermed assats am stipulations that limil of direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service polental is required to be raturmed 1o the transferar if not deployed
as specified.

MISA receives annual transfers from DCoG as per the allocation from Natonal Treasury in four tranches,

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an assat s recognised as revenue, except 1o the extent
that a liability is also recognised n respect of the same inflow,

As the entity satisfies a present abligation recognised ag a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange
fransaction recognised as an asset, il reduces the camying amount of the lEbility recognised and recognises an amount of
revenue egual to that reduction.

MISA recognises the transfers after submitting quarerly parfarmance and financial reports ta DCeG.
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1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continuaed)
Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange fransaction is messurad at the amount of the increasea in nat assets recognised by the entity.

VWhen, as a result of 8 non-2xchange transaction, the enfity recognises an assef, it also recognises revenus enquivalent to the
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acguisition, unkess it is also required 10 recognize a liability,
Where a liability |5 reguired to b recagnised o will be méasured as the best astmate of the amount required 1o setthe the
obligatian al the reparting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is
subzeqguently reduced, becausa the taxable event ocours ar & candition is satisfied, the amaunt of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenus,

1.13 Fruitless and wasteful expenditura

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoded had reasonable care been
axarcised,

All expenditure refating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure s récognised &s an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incumed. The expendilure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.14 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incured in
contravantion of ar that is not in accordance with 8 requirement of any applicables kegistation, including -

{a} this Act; or

(b} the State Terder Board Act, 1988 (Act MNo. B5 of 1968), or any regulations made in termes of the Act, or

(&) any provincal legisiation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial govermment,

Irreguiar expanditure is recorded In the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount recorded & equal fo
the value of the Iregular expenditure incurred, unless it & impractical o determing, in which case reasons therefore must
be provided in the note.

Irreguiar expanditure recelvables are meazurad at the amaount that i expected (o be recoverad and are de-racognized
when settled or wiltten-off as irracaverable,

Irregular expanditure i= disclosed in note 24 in the annual financial statements.
1.15 Related parties

A related party iz 8 person or an entily with the ability to control or jointly cantrol the other party, or exercize significant influence
aver the other party, or vice versa, ar an entity that is subject to common control, or joint contred, The following are
regarded as related parfies of the entity,

a) A person or & close member of that person's family is related to the reparting entity if that person;
*  has confrol or joint control over the reporting entity;
. has significant influence over the reperting entity, or
+ |5 a member of the management of the antity or its contralling entity.

b} An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the fallowing conditions apply;

*  the entity s &8 member of the same ecanomic entity (which means that esch controlling entity, controlied entity
and fellow controlled eniity is retated to oithears)

* one enfity iz an assaciate or joint veniure of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of an
economic enlity of which the other antily is 8 member),

+  both entitles are joint ventures of the same third party,;

+« gneenfity is 8 joint venture of & third party and the other entity | an associate of the thind party,
the entity is & post employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovess of either entity is tself a plan the

- sponsoring emplovers are relatad to the entity,

Related party transaction: is a transfer of resources, sanvices or obligations betwesn the reparting entity and a related
party, regardlass of whathar a price is chargad.
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1.16 Related parties {continued)

Significant influence: is the power to participate in the financial and aparating pelicy decisions of an antity but s not
control aver those policies,

Management; are those parsans regpansible for planning, directing and contralling the activities of the enfity, including
thosa charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with the kegisiation, in instances where they are required to
parfom such funclions.

Close family members: close family members of a family are those family members who may be expected to influenca, or
be influenced by fhat persan in their dealings with the enfity.

Disclogsure: Only fransactions with refated parties where the transactions are not concluded within normal operating
procedures or on terms that are no more or less favourable than the terms it would use to coclude transactions with any
ather person ane disclosed,

MISA is exempl from disclosure requirements in relatian o related parly transactions if that transaction coeurs within
normal supplier andfor client/recipient relationships on ferms and conditions no merz or less favourabis than thoss which it
i reasonable to expect the entity to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or persen in the same circumstances
and terms and condittons are within the narmal operating parameters established by that reporting entity's kegal mandate.

1.16 Events after reporting date

Euvents after repording date are those events, balh favourable and unfavourable, that accur betwasn the reporting date and the
date when the financial staterments are authorised for issue, Two types of events can be |dentified;
. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the repording date (adjusting events after the raporiing date);
and
+  lhose that are indicative of conditions that arose afler the reporting date (non-adjusting events afler the reporting
date)

The entity will adjust the amaunt recognised in the financizl statements to reflect adjusting events afier the reparting date once
the event occurred.

The antity will dizclose the nature of the event and an eztimate of its financial effect or a statament that such estimate cannot
be made in respact of all matanal non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of usars
taken an the basis of the financial statements,

1.17 Financial ingtruments

A financial instrument is any conlract that gives risa to a financial assel of one entity and a financial iakiity or a residual
interest of another antity.

& derivative is & financial mstrumant or ather contract with all three of the following characizristics;
. Its velue changes in response to the change in & specifisd interest rate, financial instrument price, commaodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other varaole, provided in the case of
a non-finangial varable that the variable is not specific (o a party (o the contract (sometimes called the ‘underying’).
¢ |l requires no initial net investment or an mitial net investmeant thal is smaller than would be requirad for ather typas
of contracts that would be expected lo have a similar response fo changes in market factars,
. It is settled &t a future date.

A financial esset is:
* cash,
+ 3 residual interest of another antity. or
«  acontractusl right to;
- raceive cash or another financial gsset from another enfity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial lizgbilities with another enfity under conditions that are potentially
favaurable o the anlily.

A Fnancial iability s any lability that i2 & contractual obligation 1o;
«  deliver cash or another financial asset 1o another enfity. or
*  exchange financigl assets or financial Fabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity,
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1.17 Financial ingtruments (continued)
Receivables from non-exchange transactions

MISA does not have trade receivables. Other recavables are initially recognised at fair value, plus or minug ransactions
costa, and subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Recawvables from exchange ransactions

Recevables from exchange transactions are disclosed separalely from other receivables from non-exchange transactions,
Receivables from exchange fransaction are subssquenily measured at amorised cost, using effective interest method, less
acoumulated impaimment losses

Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables are initially maasurad at falr value plus or minus ransaction costs, and are subsaquently measurad at
amorhised cost, using the effective interest rate mathod and are derecognised when payment is made.

Prepayment

Prepayments are recognized in the statement of financial position when the MISA pays in advance for expenses. Prepayments
are initially and subsagquently measured at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprige cash on hand and demand deposits, and othar short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily converlible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an inssgnificant nek of changes in value. These
are initially measured at fair value and subssgquently al amortised cosL

Classification

The enity has the fallvwing types of financial assets (classes and category) &s reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Receivables Financial asset measured at amortissd cost
Cash and cash eguivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of finansial labiitles (classes and caliegory) as reflecied on the face of the slatement of
financial positicn or in the notes thereto:!

Class Category
Payables Financial hability maasured at amofsed cast
Initial recognition

The entity recognises a finrancial assel or a financial liability in its statement of fingncial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the ingtrument,

The enfity recognises financial assets using trade dafe accounting,
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial assetl and financial liability initally at s fair value plus transaction cosis thal are directly
attributable ta the acquisition or iseue of the financial asset or financial lRDdity.
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1.17 Financial ingtruments (continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial Habilities

The entity measures al financial assets and financial Babiliti=s after initial recognition using the following cateqgorizs:
- Financial insruments at amortised cost.
All financial assets measured a1 amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an mpairment review.

Impalrment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whethar there is any objective evidence that a financial assat or group of
financial asseis is impaired

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impaiment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss s measured as the difference bebwean the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future cradit losses that have not been incured) discounted at the financal asset's onginal
effective interest rate. The carrving amount of the asset is reduced directly through the use of an sllowance account. The
arnount of the l02s is recognised in surplus or deficit

If, in a subsequent panod, the amount of the imparment loss dacreases and the dacrease can be related obpectively to an
even| ocourming after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognized impaiment loss |s reversed directly OF, by
adjusting an allowance acoount The reversal doss not result in a-carrying amount of the finzncial asset that exceeds what the
amortised cost wolld have been had the impairment nat bean recognisad at the date the impairment is reversed, The amount
of the reversal is recegnised in surplus or deficit.

Darecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises finanoel assets using trade date sccounting,

The entity derecognises a financial assat anly when:

* the contractual nights to the cash fiows from the financial assel expire, ame settled or waived;

. the antity transfers to anather party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

«  the entity, despite having relained some significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel. has
transfarrad contral of the asset to another party and the cther party has the practical ability to sall the asset in itz
entirety to an unrelzted third parly, &nd = able to exercse that ability unilaterally and without nesding to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer, In this caze, the entity
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise segarately any rghts and cbligatons created or retained (n the transfer,

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liabiity (or @ part of a financial lisbifity) from its staiement of finencial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

The differance between the carrying amount of a financial Lability (or par of a financial hability) extinguished or ransfarred to
anather party and the consideration pad, including any non-cash assets trapsferred or llabilibes assumed, Is recogrised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waved, fargiven or assumed by anather entity by way of a non-axchange fransaction
are accounted for in accordance with the Siandard of GRAP on Reveruwe from Mon-exchange Transections (Texes and
Tranzfers).

1.18 Impalrment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generaling assels are assels usad with the objective of generating a commercial return. Cammercial retum means that
positive cash flows are expectad o be significantly highar than the cost of the asset,

Impaimment is a lass in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recogniticn
of the loas of the assat's fulure economic benafits or semnvice patential through depreciation (amonisation).
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1.18 Impairment of cash-generating aszets (continued)

Carrying amaunt is the amount 81 which an assel s racognised in the statement of financial posttion after deducting any
aocumulated depraciation and accumulated iImpairment losses thareon,

A cash-genergiing unit is the smallest entfiable group of assets used with the objective of genarating 2 commercial return
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash infiows from other assets orgroups of
assels.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly atiributable to the disposal of an assel, excluding finance costs and income tax
expenss,

Depraciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depraciablz amount of an assst aver its useful life.

Fair value less costs to =ell s the amount ablainsble from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing partes, less the costs of dispasal,

Recovarable amount of an assal ar a cash-generatng unit |5 the hagher its fair value less costs ta sell and s value in use.
Useful life is either:
+ the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity, or
. the number of production or similar units expactad (o be oblained from the assat by the entity.
Identification
When the carrying amount of a cash-ganerating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired,

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any
zuch indication exists, the enfity esiimaies the recoverable amount of the assel

Irrespective of whethar there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a cash-generating intangible asset with an
indsfirite useful life ar a cash-genarating intangible asset nol yel available for uge for impairmant annuaily by comparing i1s
camying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test s performed at the same time every year, If an intangible
asset was initially recognizad during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairmant before the end
of the curment reporting perod.

Value in use

Walue in usa of 3 cash-ganserating assat is the present value of the estimated future cash flows sxpecied lo be derived from the
continuing use of an asset and from ifs disposal &t the end of its useful iife,

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the entity estimates the future cash inflows and outfiows to be derved from
continuing use of tha asset and from its ultimate disposal and the entity applies the appropriate discount rate to those future
cash flows.

Recognition and measurement {individual asset)

If the recoversble amount of & cash-generating asset is less than its carmying amouni. the camrying amount of the asset is
reduced toits recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment [oss.

An impairment fess is recognised immediately in surplus or deficil.
Any mpairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment Ioss is greater than fhe carying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it
relates, the entity recognises a liability anly to the extent that is a reqguirement in the Standard of GRAP,

After the recegnition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating assel is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the cash-ganerating asset's revised carrying amount, less ite residual value (if any}, on a systematic
basis aver itz remaining useful life.
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1.19 Construction Contracts

& construction contract is a confract, or similar binding arrangement specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset, ar
combination of assets, that are dosely interslated or interdependent in terms of its design, technology and funchon or the
ultimate purpnse or use. Refention sre amounts of progress billings that are not paid until the satisfaction of conditions
specified in the contract for the payment of such amounts or uniil defects have been reciified.

MISA is involved in fixed price conlracts; these are construction contracts in which the contractor agrees to a fixed contract
prica, ar a fixed rate per unil of cutpul, which in some cases i subject to cosl escalahon claussas,

Contract costs are recognised as expenditure in the siatement of financial performance in the period in which the congtruction
work is performed, Retentions not paid are recognised as abilities in the statement of financial position at the end of the
reporting period.

Construclion contracts expenditure are included in conlracted sanvices.
2. New standards and interpretations

21 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has nat appled the following standards and Interpretations, which have been [ssued by the ASE.

Standard! Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or
after
*  GRAP 104 {amended): Financial Instruments 1 April 2025 To be detesmined
*  GRAP 25 (Revised) Employee Benefits To be determinsd To be delermined
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2022 202

R R
3. Prepayments
The prepaymeant refars to licance fees paid In advance.
Prapayment - Softwara Licences 1,711,384 1,789,476
4, Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Other Recsivablas 366,625 587 401
LGSETA TODEZS -
Pravision for doubtful debis (192 411) [278.413)

B74 843 308 988
Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts
Opening balance (278.413) (273,120}
Increase in provision {12,705} (5,293}
Bad debls wrilten off against provisicn o8, 707 -
Closing balance (182.417) (278.413)
LGSETA relates 1o funding far Bursanas, Thesa amaount was received in Apnl 2022,
5, Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents consist of
Petty Cash 25,704 23,359
Bank balances-Current and Salary Accournt 19,435,732 9,649 885
Short-term deposits- Call Account 311,803,287 206,288 231

331,264,723 215961475

6. Property, plant and equipment

2022 2021
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuafion depreciation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Furniture and fixtures 6,556,746 (4,653 204} 1,903,542 G556 746 [4.434.802) 2,121,854
Molor vehicles G24. 322 (567817} 56,505 24 322 (942 .410) 81,912
Office aquipmeant 2.947 BBT {1,763 455} 1,184,202 2,906 623 [1642.518) 1,264 105
Computer equipment 19065947 (11,927 308) T.138.638 15,767,133 (11,103.611) 4 G63 522
Total 25184682 (1B.511.794) 10282888 25854 824 (17.723.4310) 8,131,383
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6. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Mar 2022

Opening Additions Disposal at  Depreciation Total

bakance carrying value
Furniture and fixlures 2,121,854 - - {218,312} 1,803 542
Motar vehicles B1,912 - - (25,407 56,505
Office squipment 1284105 48,010 (2 B58) (125,057) 1,184 202
Computzr eguipment 4 663,522 3,801,535 (140932)  (1,285,48G) 7,138,639

B,131,383 3,048 545 (143,788) (1,654,262) 10,282 885

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Mar 2021

Cpening Additions Disposal  Depreciation Total

balance
Furniture and fixiures 2,339 827 . - 1217,873) 2121 854
Motor vehicles 107,320 A 2 {25.408) 81,812
Office sauipment 1,372,831 - - (108,726) 1,264 105
Computer equipment 4,570,205 1,061,038 (36,228)  (1,321,481) 4,863 522
8,79 183 1,051,035 136,228) {1,673,598) 8,131,393

Pledged as security
There are no items of Property plant and equipment pledged as security.

7. Intangible assels

2022 2021
Cost ! Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation amortisation Valuation amortisation

Computer software 815002 (B11.472) 203,530 815,002 [55T.298) 257,707
Municipal Infrastructurs 33946284 (22913739} 11,032,545 33,948.285  (19.519.112) 14427 173
Ferfomamnce Management
Infarmation System (MIPMIS)
Total 34,761,286 (23525211 11,235,075 34,761,287  (20,075,407) 14,684,580

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Mar 2022

Opening Amortisation Total

balance
Caomputer software -ather 257,707 (54,177 203,530
Municipal Infrastructure Perfomamance Management Infarmation System 14,427,173 (3384,628) 11,032 545

(MIFMIS) - (Intemally gensrated)

14,684 BB0 (3,448 805) 11236075

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Mar 2021

Opening  Amortisation Total

balance
Computer software, other 319,729 (52,022) 287 707
MIPMIS - Internally generatad 17,821,801 (3,354 628) 14427173

1E,141,530 13,455,850) 14,684 880
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7. Intangible assets {continued)
Pledged as security
There are no idle assets held and Ihere are no assats pledged as sacurity,
8. Operating Lease Liability
Currant liabilibes B0 243 345507
Operating lease accrual B0.243 345 507
Minimum Lease payments due for the following periods: )
Mot later than one year B,022382 7,848 7568
Latsr than one year and not later than five years 1,397,757 67,500

84201189 B.016,268

The amounts above show operating leases for the head office building and photocopiers. The office space i for MISA head
office.

The lease term for the head office bullding is far a peried of 18 months which commenced on 1 December 2027 and ends on
31 May 2023 with an escatation rate of 7% per annum,

The lzase term for photecopiers 18 for 8 duration of 3 years,

Currectty MISA has 4 opersting lease contracts for photocopiers with a duration of 3 years per comtract. The first contract
commeanced in June 2098 and the last contract ends In Seplember 2023, with no ezcalation rates. The contracis have an
optien for 24 menths extensicn at a reducad rental amount specified |n the Intial contracts,

8. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 72463140 25 498 544
Service banus lablity 4,153,136 3888 587
Other payables 5T.6595 368390

TEETI OV 32756 531
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10. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - Mar 2022

Opening Movement Closing

Balanco Balance
Leave provisicn: Employaes 13,189,748 (2168127 12,0872 936
Perfarmance Bonus Provisian 908,618 (906,518) -
Tachnical Consuitant Claim 1,800,000 - 1,800,300

15,965, 366 (1,123,430) 14,872,936

Reconciliation of provisions - Mar 2021

Opening Movement Total
Balance
Leave Provisions: Employess 10,813,150 2,376,558 13,189,748
FPerformance Bonus Provision 1,531,000 (624, 382) 906,618
Technical Conzullant Claim - 1,500,000 1,800,000

12,344, 180 3,652,178 15,904 366

Leave Provision: This refates o the value of leave owing to MISA employees. The llability s based an the total amount of laave
days due to employses as at 31 March 2022 based on the total remuneration package of the employee, Accumulated leave is
carmied forward and cen be wsed i future periods. Any unused leave releting fo prior calender year (leave oycle) will be
forfeited by 30 June 2022, All unused leave will be paid out to the employes at the end of the employment term or termination
of cantract

Performance Banus Provision: No performance bonus provision has been made for the currenl financial year,

Technical Consultant Claim relates to the unfair dismissal claim lodged by a consultant. The consultant lodged a case with the
Bargaining Council claiming unfair dismissal a8 he had a legitimate expectation of employment. The Bargaming Council has
ruled against MISA, requiring MISA to employ the consultant and pay him R1, 9 million in remuneration dating back from 2018,
MiSaA management has instructed counsel 1o appeal the dacision of the bargaining coundil. '

11. Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest Received 8,685 620 3777 540

12. Revenue from non exchange transactions

Govermnment grant 244 564 000 339749000
LGSETA Funding 700620 2411160
Impraving MISA's Labour Infansive Capacity - 50,000 000
Innevative Solid Waste Managemean! Programmz 284 000,000 -

529,564 B29 392 160160
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13. Employee related cost

Basic salary, Non pensionable allowanca, Acting allowance and other allowances not 151423 B85 145 683 558
listed below

Bonus B.BET. 200 B .E70,264
IMedical aid 1,834,043 1,604,530
Pension 13,895 622 13,143 983
Hausing allowances 2568211 2377718

178,608,785 172680050
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13, Employes related cost [continued)

Remuneration for Key Managemaent Parsonnel - 31 March 2022

Basic Salary  Ciber Shork- Banuses and Poste Fees lor Tatal
tem amployes  Perdormnce  employmend  sarvices gs e Remunaralan
benefits relabad such =5 mmmiber af
paymants  Pension and  managament
cher

ratiremman
‘baralits
Chisf Exacudive Qfficer - Wimba GN 1405 748 44 642 - 182,747 200821 H IG5
Chigd Firancial Officar - Mombemoe-Ofosu F 843,526 302,159 - 122,654 - 1.368.343
Deputy Direclor General « Kgomo EM. 4,198,852 O7E 694 - 155,062 e 1,734,538
Daputy Diractar Gararsl - Zmiwe 4G 06 504 ATEA34 - 117,118 - 1,295 361
Chigf Directar - Ngobeni TS 972 045 324380 = 126,364 L 1422794
Chief Directar - Mamuremi F 1062 877 LT Va4 - 124,174 - +,534 845
Chief Direchar - Methasa \W 833,784 A67.581 - 164,314 - 1406058
Chief Director - Mathabathe R BaB Bas 8 Bha - 115,588 - 1260400
Acling Chisf Director - Diaola T 373,349 183,133 - A3 542 - 805,074
‘Chiel Direcbar - Mhkasi H. TET J2E 432 BA0 . £, 7Ed - 1298775
Ghief Diractar - Nealagi L F15.848 20,285 - 119,060 - 1,355 193
Chief Directar - Mngsia NP B75 2R 28T BB - 113,857 E 127ran
Acting Chied Director - Mishal BS 186 pas L e - 50,25 - BO% 400
11528412 4,208,337 - 1,468,431 200,821 17.435.001
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13, Employes related cost [continued)

Remuneration for Key Managemant Parsonnel - 31 Mar 2021

Basic Salary  Ciher Shork Bonuses and Post Fees for Tatal
term amplayes  Perdormnce  employmend  sarvices gs e  Remunaralan
benefis ralabed such s irmmiber af
paymants  Pension and  managament
kher ’

ratireman

‘Depalita
Chief Exacufive Officer - Vimba GN 1,384,572 415619 - 180,045 167 853 HATE 401
Chia? Firancal Officar - Mombenibe-Olosu F M3 10 281,681 5864 122,604 - T 405 01&
Deputy Direclor Gereral - Kgomo EM 4,182 130 A35 512 - 153,677 e 1,871,318
Acting Deputy Diractor Ganersd - Mpabani TS BT 528 AT0119 = 136,311 = 1,566,058
Chigf Direchar - Kook . 436,321 13036 ] 86,722 " B23 358
Chief Direchar - Marmaremi F 1,047 165 Nz vs0 - 146,182 - 1455 061
Chief Diractor - Methasa W B3Z 524 A4T 054 60368 108,267 - 1448531
Chiaf Directar - Mathabathe R a7s mae #1602 - 113,457 - 1241287
Gl Dirsctar - Mkosi H 5800 143 206 - 41,054 - SO0OBT,
Chief Directar « Moalasi L 753,347 82238 - 57,835 - 1013520
Ghiaf Dimectar - Mngeta WP 145 571 I1.436 - 18,979 - 195353
Agtirey Chied Director - Dlada T 16, E34 2TB.578 - 4,185 = TdDEST

#2105 55 3,268,131 119,000 1,209, 7 187,853 4100745
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14. Depreciation and amortisation
Praperty, plant and equipment 1,654 261 1673 587
intangible assets 34485805 3,456 650

5103066 5,130,247

15. Finance costs

Interest pad - 525 862

Finanoe costs relates Lo interes! chargad by MISA's travel service provider on disputed invoices, The matter was finally seltled
through the court and MISA was ordered to pay the disputed invoices plus interast an the outstanding amaunt.

16, Funds Surrenderd to DCoG

Fundz Surrendared to DCaG 117,172,059 -

17. Contracted services

Information Technology Sarvices 5,058,312 2867 997
Professional and consulting services 135953840 23 449 901
Property rental 11.6833.691 11,825,204
Agency support GB42. 492 T8 6L
Securily sorvicas 1,321 870 1,185 031
Infrastructure Projects 65.971.444 14,534 423

220582758 54 646 3502

Information Technology Services expenditure has increesed by - Additional microsoft licences for new employess and young
graduates contributed to higher expenditure in the current financial year compared o prior year.

The increased axpenditure on infrastructure projects, professional and consulling Services i3 mainly dus o the accelerated
implimentatian of projects compared 1o prior year whera we had COVID-19 lockdown, Expenditure related ta the Inpovative
solid waste management solution has also contributad o increased expenditurs,

Infrastructure projects relate {0 projects confracted in suppart of municipalities. All Infrastruciure Project relafed costs are
expenzed in the year they are incumed,
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18. General expenses
Advertsing expensas 405,753 98 841
Audit fees 5,762 523 4 396 GBS
Bank Charges 85094 88,890
Cleaning T12.886 711 622
Office ralated expanditurs 348745 548 169
Increase in the provision for bad debis 12,708 5292
Entertainmsant 169 082 146 678
Printing and stationany 1.077.51% 1331456
Telephone 2368108 2288 426
Transport 3 831.930 1558224
Training 4 455 683 4270083
Accomadation 15,746,056 B225131
Bursares 4 597 030 4995 221
Catering 122 669 54,367
Sundry expenzes 4,103 130 3313186
Venues and facilites QOE #295 11,768

44 TOBEZE 32145034

Included under sundry expenses are the following expenses:

Consumables 1,658 666 1,481 360
Courier 5,150 6,300
Legal costs 2,311,180 1,784,293
Net Loss on assats written off 130,134 36,228

4103130 3,313,188

Accommodation and fransport expendiiure has increased significantly when comparing prior year to cument financial year. This
Is due to the increased activities in the current financial year while in the prior year was a decrease due to COVID-15 lockdown,
The Eastarn Sea Board develapment project also contributed to the increase inexpendiurs. '

Total amount spent on venues and facilitiss in the curent financial year relates fo the Easlern S2a Hoard developmenmt
project.

Office refated expanditure relates to stationery, minor assets, fuel and office refreshments, The major portion of consumables
for the current year relales to tha PPE for Technical Skilks.

19. Cash generated from operations

Surplus for the vear 71,884,966 130810214
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amorisation 5,103,068 5,130,247
Loss on assets witten off 143,788 35,228
{Decrease)Increase in operating lease fiabilities {285,264 345 507
(DecreaseVincrease in provigions (1,123.430) 3,652,176
{Increaza) in Recevables from non-exchange lransactions (565 B55) {16,212
Decrease/(increase) in Prepayments TH, 082 (57 BE2)
Increasel|Decrease) In Payables from exchange transactions 43,817 440  (21,113,364)
Cash genarated from oparations 115,252,783 118,786 934
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20. Commitments
Approved Expenditure
Total Commitments
. Contractors 174912873 145440 842
Commitments payable not later than one year
+  Contraciors 145,706 454 135328251
Commitments payable later than one year and not later than five years
Contraciors 26,206 419 10,112,591

26206418 10,112.591

This committed expenditure relates to service providers and will be financed by eguitable shares  from Mational Tressury
through DCoG.
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21. Contingencies
Contingent lability

The contingant labilities relate to the foliowing:

1. Claim by service provider for work dome on the Northern Cape Bucke! eradication programme. Contract was
terminated by mutugl agreemsnt, the claim is for R12 000 000, There are no prospects of MISA paying based on
ihe expert repart on work done. The other amount claimed was not for work performed and MISA also has 3 counter
claim. Furthermorna the reason for termination was due to the submission of a fraudubent tax clearance certificate.

2 Claim by farmer technical consultants relating to extension of contracts. MISA may be required to pay B4 million plus
Iegal costs should the former Technical Consultants win their case. The probabilities of MISA being required to pay are
fcw. The contracts of the TCs expired and the new process excluded them objectively |

a. The employese’s contract was larminated by MISA for an aulstanding gualification cedificate. He took the matter Lo the
Bargaining Council and the matter was dismigsed. He approached the Labour Court and the matter will ba haard
there, The claim is for R1 488 710,

4, The service provider was engagsd for the training of young gradugtes. The service provider has been submitting
invoices that were substantisted by evidence and those were paid. Towards the end of the condract an:invoice
was submitted but lacked evidence of work done and on that basis MISA refusad to process the involce. Atternpls to
resalve the maller at top managemeant level yielded no results, I was agreed that Arbitration Foundation of Sautharn
Africa will have to resalve the dispuie, as provided for in the cantract The claim s for R1 559 099,

5 The Lebour Appeal Court (LAC) declared the salary increases far the 202002021 financigl year unizwful and invahd,
The LAC ruling has been appealed and referred to the Constitutional Court The ruling by the Constitutional Court
will confirm if the department will be obkgated to pay the salary increazes in dispute. The management judgement
is that, there s currently no reasonable basis lo quantify the financial impact of the COLA payment for 2020721 in
the event the Constitutional Court rules against the LAC judgement, Consequantly, no amount is attached 1o this
contingent liability.

. A potental refund of surplus funds te DCoG.
Claim againzt the state 19,027 808 25311717
Potential Funds to be Surranderad ta DCol 242,243,811 117,172,059

281,271,620 142483776

Priar year figure were restated by inclusion of R117,17 millign
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22. Related parties
Relationships
The tollowing are members of the same econamic enfity namely” Department of Cooperative Governance

Department of Traditional Affairs

Municipal Demarcation Board

Saulh Afrlca Cities Netwarks-Fallow Centralled Entity
South African Local Government Asscciahion

CRL Rights Commission

Related party transactions

Transfer Received

Transfer from DCoG 628,864,000 382742000
Payments made

Funds surrendered to DCoG (117, 172,059) -

Related party balances
Amound included in payables awed to DCaG for the recavery ol expenses paid by 203,003 203,083
DCoG on behalf of MISA. This iz payable within 30 days of invoicing.

Refer to note 13 for key management personnel information and note 27 for members of audil commities.,

23. Risk management

Financial risk management

The entity's activities expase it 1o a vanety of financal risks market risk (including currency nsk, fair value interast rate risk,
cash fiow interest rate risk and price risk), credit nisk and liquidity nisk, The manegement of the entity have overall responsibility
for the establishment and monitoring of the entity's risk management policies and procedures which have been: established to
identify and analyse the risks faced by the antity, 10 set appropréiate risk limits and centrols and 1o monitor adherence to limits,
risk management policies and procedures and reviewsd reguiarly to reflact changes in market conditions and the entily's
activities

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the nsk that relates 1o the entity’s ability to pay all ts creditors.

MISA does not have any long term labilities. The entity receives its funding from National Treasury through DCeG and incurs

axpanditure in terms of a planned budoet, MISA has sufficient resources ta maat 12 obligations as they fall dus, Refer to note
9. Monthly management meetings are held to ensure that the plannad budget 1= sdequataly managed,

Maturity analysis
30 days 8,673,971 32756501
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23. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk that an enfity's debitors will not be able 1o pay, MISA 5 not a trading entity and therefore does not usually
have debtors and therefore has minimel credit risk, The receivables as reflected below relate to staff debtors who have been
over-paud, conssquently no independent assessment on the quality of the debior was done. Faor the debtors refiected below
scknowledgemeni of debt and repayment plans have been received. The majority of deblors are abiding by the repayment
tarms.

Financial assets exposed 1o credit ek at 31 March 2022 were as follows:

Age analysis of recelvables for non-exchange transactions (neither past due nor 2022 2021
impaired)

0-2 manthe T44. 025 152,275
=3-6 months 7.885 2823
=8-12 months 4 950 4 543
=12 months and okder 117.883 149 347
TOTAL BT 843 308 988
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an entity's financial instruments may fuctuate due to changes in
market pricas. MISA has ingignificant market nsk in terms of the cash held in its bank account.

24. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 1,510,113 984 251
Add: Expandilure incured - currant year - 525 862
Amount writtan off (881,424} :

528 689 1510113

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off relates 10 a salary overpayment and 3ARS penalty due to late payment of
employees tax. The remaining balance of frullless and wasleful expandilure ralates to interast charged by MISA's ravel service
provider on disputad invoices. Conseguence managament will be effected as scon as Investigation is completed,

25, lrregular expenditure

There is noirmegular expenditure incurred during the current year,
26. Employee banefit obligations

Defined contribution plan
Caontributions 135,885 622 13,143,983
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26. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

MISA employees baelong to a defined benefit plan which s managed by the Government Employeas Penzion Fund (GEPF),
sufficient infarmatian relating to MISA employees is not avallable as the emplayees are a part of a larger pension fund scheme
managed by the Governmeant Fund, Therefore the defined benefil plan s disclosed a defined confribution plan as sufficient
imfarmation s not available to use defined benefit accounting

MISA's responsibilty regarging the funding of the shortfall of the pension fund is limited to the current contributions made on
bahalf of itz employees. The obligation of the fund is guaranteed by the National Revenue Fund and not by the individual
governmenl deparimenis and entiies. This responsibility = govemed by the Governmeni Employees Pansion Law,
Proclamation 21, These contributions are included in the sumlus or deficit of the reporting period

An actuarial valuaticn of the GEPF i conducted at least every three years az prescribed in section 17{3) of the GEP Law.

27. Fees for members of Audit and Risk Committes

Mr F Sinthumule - 28080
s GV Abdoll 161,645 -
Mr 5 Gounden 152,083 -
Ns O Dondur - B9 587
M= P Mzizi - 142 353
Mr LL Makiinyane 157.8971 08 00d
M= M Lubangs 162 380 131,520
Mr LJ Makaoro B0 242 42 392
Dr P Dala 184 187 148 GAT

903528 a0 607

All the members of audit committee are external members. Or Dala has been appointed as the chairperson of the audit
committe. Mr LJ Makoro has been appointed s & chairperson of the risk management commitie.

28. Actual operating expenditure versus budgeted operating expenditure
281 Intarest received on the Call Account was not budgeted for hence the positive vanance of RE 68 million
28.2  warance befween Final Budget and Actual Expenditure,

= Employee reiated Costs: The expenditure amounting to R178.61 million was incurred against the budget of R210.00
millien which resulted in an underspending of R37.39 million. The under expenditure is mainly dus o vacancies,
recruitment of young graduates and experiential leamers that took longer than expecied.

« Contracted sarvices. The expenditure amounting to R22058 milllon was incured against the budge! of RIG8.56
millicn which resulted in &n underspending of R148.38 million. The under expenditure is mainly due o the Presidential
Sumulus Package programme on innovative solid waste management ntervention in municipalities, MISA anly
received an approval of the Presidential Stimulus Package funds towards the end of the third quarter into the financial
yEar.

*  Funds surrendersd to DCoG amounting to R117.17 million were not accounted for in the Budget.

29. BBBEE Compliance Performance Information

BBBEE Performance Information on compliance with the B-BBEE Act is included in the annual report under the section ttled B-
BBEE Coempliance Parformance Information.

136



Municipal Infrasiructure Supporl Agenl
Annugl Repori 20212022

NOTES

137



Municipal Infrasiructure Supporl Agenl
Annugl Repori 20212022

NOTES

138



MISAZ

MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE
SUPPORT AGENT

Teday, Creating a Berter Tomorrow

Telephone Number: +27 12 848 5300
Email Address: communications@misa.gov.za
Website: www.misa.gov.za

e e EEE—— Y

Letaba House | Riverside Office Park | 1303 Huewel Road | Centurion | 0046
Private Bag X105 | Centurion | 0046




